CITY OF MEDINA
AGENDA FOR COUNCIL MEETING

May 12, 2025
Medina City Hall — Council Rotunda
7:30 p.m.
Call to Order.
Roll Call.

Reading of minutes. (April 28, 2025)
Reports of standing committees.

Requests for council action.

Reports of municipal officers.
Notices. communications and petitions.

Unfinished business.

Introduction of visitors.
(speakers limited to 5 min.)

Introduction and consideration of ordinances and resolutions.

Motion to suspend the Rules requiring three readings on the following ordinances and resolutions: Res.
86-25, Ord. 87-25, Ord. 88-25, Ord. 89-25, Ord. 90-25, Ord. 91-25, Ord. 92-25, Ord. 93-25, Ord. 94-25,
Ord. 95-25, Ord. 96-25

Res. 86-25
A Resolution authorizing the submission of an application for grant assistance from the Ohio

Department of Development, Office of Community Development, in connection with the Small Cities
PY?25 Community Development Block Grant.

Ord. 87-25

An Ordinance amending Section 133.01 of the codified ordinances of the City of Medina, Ohio relative
to the “City” Association Memberships.

Ord. 88-25

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to accept a Water Line Easement for the construction of Job #1181
—S. Court Water Main Loop.
(emergency clause requested)



Medina City Council
May 12, 2025

Ord. 89-25

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to accept an Access and Landscape Easement at the South Court
Street Water Tower site.

Ord. 90-25

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Construction Agreement with Albrecht, Inc.
regarding the Highpoint Drive Widening.

(emergency clause requested)

Ord. 91-25

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Location Release and Video Content Release
between the City of Medina and American Dream Media and Tech Holdings, LLC.

(emergency clause requested)

Ord. 92-25
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Lease between the City of Medina and the Medina
Metropolitan Housing Authority to renovate and use the property located at 135 N. Elmwood Ave.

Ord. 93-25

An Ordinance accepting the appraisals (Fair Market Value Estimate) for the Prospect Street Bridge
Project.
(emergency clause requested)

Ord. 94-25

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to grant a Utility Easement to Ohio Edison to allow for the
construction of electrical facilities.
(emergency clause requested)

Ord. 95-25

An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 209-24, passed November 25, 2024. (Amendments to 2025
Budget)

Ord. 96-25

An Ordinance creating New Chapters 1347 “Comprehensive Stormwater Management”, Chapter 1349
“Erosion and Sediment Control” and Chapter 1351 “Illicit Discharge and Illegal Connection Control” of
the Codified Ordinances of the City of Medina, Ohio; and repealing the existing Section 1341.04 “Plans
and Maps Required for Improvements; Erosion Control”.

Ord. 97-25
An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 81-25, passed April 28, 2025, pertaining to the US 42
Resurfacing Project, Job #1151.

Council comments.

Adiournment.



MEDINA CITY COUNCIL
Monday, April 28, 2025

Call to Order:

Medina City Council met in regular session on Monday, April 28, 2025 at Medina City Hall. The
meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m., by President of Council John Coyne III, who also led in
the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call:
The roll was called with the following members of Council present: J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose,
J. Shields, C. Simmons and D. Simpson. Regi Haire was absent.

Also present were the following members of the Administration: Mayor Hanwell, Matt Lanier,
Keith Dirham, Patrick Patton, Scott Marcum, Nino Piccoli, Dan Gladish, Chief Walters, Teresa
Knox, Jansen Wehrley, Jarrod Fry, Andrew Dutton and Kimberly Marshall.

Reading of Minutes:

Mr. Shields moved that the minutes from the regular meeting on April 14, 2025 as prepared and
submitted by the Clerk be approved, seconded by Mr. Simpson. The roll was called and approved
with the yea votes of N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields, C. Simmons, D. Simpson, and J. Coyne.

Reports of Standing Committees:

Finance Committee: Mr. Shields stated the Finance Committee met prior to Council this evening
and will meet again in two weeks.

Public Properties Committee: Mr. Shields had no report.

Health, Safety & Sanitation Committee: Mr. Simpson had no report.

Special Legislation Committee: Mr. Rose had no report.

Streets & Sidewalks Committee: Ms. Haire was absent.

Water & Utilities Committee: Mr. Simmons had no report. He stated there is a Utility Rate
Review Committee meeting on Monday, May 19" to address the potential increases from Avon
Lake Water.

Emerging Technologies Committee: Ms. DiSalvo had no report.

Requests for Council Action:
Finance Committee

25-094-4/28 — Budget Amendments

25-095-4/28 — PY25 CDBG Allocation Grant

25-096-4/28 — South Town Streetscape Improvements

25-097-4/28 — Amend Code 133.01 — Association Memberships — Service
25-098-4/28 — Water Line Easement — S. Court Water Main Loop
25-099-4/28 — Access & Landscape Easement — S. Court Water Tower Site
25-100-4/28 — Fair Market Value Estimates for Prospect St. Bridge
25-101-4/28 — Expenditure — HSH Construction & Excavating



Medina City Council
April 28, 2025

25-102-4/28 — First Energy Utility Easement

25-103-4/28 — Construction Agreement — Highpoint Drive Widening
25-104-4/28 — Expenditure — Health & Fitness

25-105-4/28 — American Dream Video Release - MCRC
25-106-4/28 — MMHA Lease - 135 N. Eimwood

Reports of Municipal Officers:

Dennis Hanwell, Mayor,

2024 Annual report is available on the city website or stop in at City Hall for a copy.

Chimney Rock Video (group from S. Carolina) Christmas Celebration is available on the
Armstrong channel, YouTube and Facebook.

Thursday, May 1*. — National Day of Prayer starting at 9:15 a.m. with community prayer service
at St. Francis Church. Prayer stations at multiple locations in the community.

Community gathering on the Square at 6:30 p.m.

Farmer’s Market 9 a.m. — 1 p.m. starting May 17" and every Saturday thereafter.

Gospel Fest—May 17" 2 p.m. - 5 p.m.

Medina City Schools Strings in the Park - May 22" noon to 1 p.m.

Ladies Night Out — Thursday, May 22" 4 p.m. - 10 p.m.

Medina Half Marathon — May 24" 6:45 am. - 11 a.m.

Keith Dirham, Finance Director, Keith stated there is one item on the agenda that he will address.

Matt Lanier, Law Department, had no report.

Kimberly Marshall, Economic Development Director, Kimberly stated there is a ribbon cutting
on Friday, May 16" starting at 2 p.m. - MPACT Collision located at 539 N. State Rd., 3 p.m. —
Cold Stream Air Services MX located at the Medina Municipal Airport 2050 Medina Rd.

Scott Marcum, Police Department, had no report.

Nino Piccoli, Service Director, Nino stated the contractor has started the grinding out here on
Friendship from Court Street to Medina St. and resurfacing pavement will begin on Wednesday.

Patrick Patton, City Engineer, had no report.

Chief Walters, Fire Department, Chief gave update on the 24-hour staffing trial they are doing
at the Fire Department as they are a few months into that now and it is going very well and they
are scheduled out through May.

Jansen Wehrley, Parks and Recreation Director, Jansen stated the Memorial Pool season passes
are now on sale May 1.

Forestry Dept. celebrated Arbor Day with help from the Kiwanis Club. Jansen thanked everyone
who volunteered to help with this project. This will be 43 years that they’ve done this. This event
helps one of our requirements to retain our Tree City USA designation. The Parks Department has

2



Medina City Council
April 28, 2025

all of their sports associations now in full swing.

Dan Gladish, Building Official, Meijer’s grand opening will be on May 8" at 9 a.m. owner
sponsored ribbon cutting ceremony. Acme construction on schedule and goal is to open 2™ week
of July.

The City Hall Parking Deck electric vehicle fast charger installation is complete, just needs
programmed.

Andrew Dutton, Planning and Community Development Director, had no report.

Notices, communications and petitions
There were none.

Unfinished Business
There is none.

Introduction of visitors

Brian Feron — 206 N. Elmwood Ave. representing Medina County Historical Society. Brain
presented the Mayor with a certificate of recognition and an award for the preservation of the
World War II War Bond Building that now sits at the McDowell Philips House Museum. This is
done by the Cleveland Restoration Society and the American Institute of Architects and presented
as an award of excellence for the preservation of a community building to the City of Medina in
recognition of outstanding work in preserving the Medina War Bond Building.

Introduction and consideration of ordinances and resolutions.

Mr. Shields moved to suspend the rules requiring three readings on the following ordinances and
resolutions, seconded by Mr. Simpson: Res. 73-25, Ord. 74-25, Ord. 75-25, Ord. 76-25, Res. 77-
25, Res. 78-25, Ord. 79-25, Ord. 80-25, Ord. 81-25, Ord. 82-25, Ord. 83-25, Ord. 84-25, Ord. 85-
25. Motion passed by the yea votes of P. Rose, J. Shields, C. Simmons, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, and
N. DiSalvo.

Res. 73-25

A Resolution authorizing participation in the Ohio Department of Transportation’s
Cooperative Purchasing Program for the purchase of sodium chloride (rock salt). Mr. Shields
moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 073-25, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Nino
explained this is their annual salt bid. Electing to purchase 1,900 tons. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 073-25 passed by the yea votes of J. Shields, C. Simmons, D. Simpson,
J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, and P. Rose.

Ord. 74-25

An Ordinance authorizing the increase of the expenditure to Rocco Masonry for the Service
Department. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 074-25, seconded
by Mr. Simpson. Nino Piccoli explained this is to increase the P.O. and will be used for storm
sewer related concrete, aprons, and sidewalks that are in disrepair. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 074-25 passed by the yea votes of C. Simmons, D. Simpson, J. Coyne,

3



Medina City Council
April 28, 2025

N. DiSalvo, P. Rose and J. Shields

Ord. 75-25

An Ordinance authorizing the purchase of one (1) 2025 Ford F-600 Cab/Chassis truck from
Montrose Ford to be used by the Street Department. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 075-25, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Nino stated this purchase is through
the CUE Program and the amount is $69,898.31. The next ordinance is for the Henderson Products
purchase of a dump body and is a replacement. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No.
075-25 passed by the yea votes of D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields and C.
Simmons.

Ord. 76-25

An Ordinance authorizing the purchase of one (1) Mark III utility sized single axle Dump
Body from Henderson Products, Inc. to be mounted on cab and chassis and to be used by the
Street Department. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 076-25,
seconded by Mr. Simpson. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 076-25 passed by
the yea votes of J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields, C. Simmons and D. Simpson.

Res. 77-25

A Resolution authorizing the Mayor to submit a grant application for a USA Water Polo
Grant for the Medina Community Recreation Center. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 077-25, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Jansen Wehrley explained this is to
apply for a grant to purchase water polo goals to be used by the rec center with the intent of starting
up a polo league. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 077-25 passed by the yea
votes of N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields, C. Simmons, D. Simpson, and J. Coyne.

Res. 78-25

A Resolution authorizing the Mayor to submit a grant application for a T-Mobile Hometown
Grant to purchase and install fifteen (15) six-foot benches on walking trails in eight of the
City Parks. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 078-25, seconded
by Mr. Simpson. Jansen stated this grant is to address a number of comments they received from
seniors and park users who are interested in having more benches along the trails in our park
amenities. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 078-25 passed by the yea votes of P.
Rose, J. Shields, C. Simmons, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, and N. DiSalvo.

Ord. 79-25

An Ordinance authorizing the increase of the expenditure to Environmental Equipment
Sales & Service Holdings LLC for the Service Department. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption
of Ordinance/Resolution No. 079-25, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Nino stated they use this
company to purchase parts for garbage trucks. This is for a replacement tailgate and the tailgate
cost is roughly $26,700.00 and a shipping freight charge of $2,000. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 079-25 passed by the yea votes of J. Shields, C. Simmons, D. Simpson,
J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, and P. Rose



Medina City Council
April 28, 2025

Ord. 80-25

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to advertise for competitive bids and to award a
contract to the successful bidder for the 2025-2026 Equipment and Asphalt General Paving
Services Program for the Service Department. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 080-25, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Nino stated this contract is
scheduled to run out in May of this year, we are going to advertise and bid for the 2025- 2026
paving season. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 080-25 passed by the yea votes
of C. Simmons, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose and J. Shields.

Ord. 81-25

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to advertise for competitive bids and to award a
contract to the successful bidder for Job #1151 US 42 Resurfacing and Pedestrian Safety
Improvements Project. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 081-
25, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Patton stated they would like to bid this project and award it.
This will resurface US 42 (Court St.) north of Homestead and down to Lafayette and also all four
sides of the square and add pedestrian safety improvements. Project is estimated at a little over
$1.9 million and $1.4 million is coming from two different grants. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 081-25 passed by the yea votes of D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo,
P. Rose, J. Shields and C. Simmons.

Ord. 82-25

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute Preliminary Legislation with the Ohio
Department of Transportation (ODOT) for the Urban Paving of State Route 3 & State Route
§7. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 082-25, seconded by Mr.
Simpson. Mr. Patton stated this is planned by ODOT for the year 2026 and is estimated at $2.2
million. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 082-25 passed by the yea votes of J.
Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields, C. Simmons and D. Simpson.

Ord. 83-25

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with
T&M Associates for consulting services to implement the Ohio Department of Development
Brownfield Remediation Program Grant. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 083-25, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Shields moved that the
emergency clause be added to Ordinance/Resolution No. 083-25, seconded by Mr. Simpson.
Kimberly Marshall stated this is for the former Yost Sunoco site located at 426 W. Liberty St.
Emergency clause is needed as the grant deadline is approaching. The grant is for $300,000 and
our matching funds are $100,000. The roll was called on adding the emergency clause and was
approved by the yea votes of N. DiSalvo, R. Haire, P. Rose, J. Shields, C. Simmons, D. Simpson,
and J. Coyne. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 083-25 passed by the yea votes
of P. Rose, J. Shields, C. Simmons, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, and N. DiSalvo.

Ord. 84-25

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into the Guaranteed Maximum Price
Agreement No. 3 with the Ruhlin Company, for work at the Medina Municipal Courthouse.
Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 084-25, seconded by Mr.

5



Medina City Council
April 28, 2025

Simpson. Mr. Shields moved that the emergency clause be added to Ordinance/Resolution No.
084-25, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Patrick stated the total value of this agreement will be
$7,674,000.00. The total construction cost of the courthouse $10,671,000.00. Asking for
emergency clause as the base agreement was signed last September and we need to lock in these
costs.
John Coyne stated this is a monumental vote as we started this back in 2001. We have been through
“several iterations of the court, several locations of the court, the latest being the combination of
the County and Municipal Court joining forces to be located in the now existing new County
Courthouse facility. As you recall we were challenged on that and it went to the voters and at that
time the cost would have been $7.8 million. With the architectural fees of $750,740,00.00 bringing
it closer to $11.4 million dollars for this project at this time. We saved all those years and we don’t
have to borrow money to do this.

Mayor Hanwell stated the voters voted to permit the city to use the 1969 building. The reason the
city was not able to go along with the additional floor on the new courthouse for the $7.9 million
was because the county had already issued the bonds and wanted to keep the project moving and
we had to wait until the next election to get this in front of the voters.

Mr. Rose clarified to the mayor it wasn’t the next general election it was the next election. The
voters said no in November of 2020 and yes in May of 2021. This was brought to you by the
Committee to Stop Government Waste and that committee stopped the city from saving $3.2
million. $3 million in construction costs, and approximately $200,000 in legal fees. All because a
group of people wanting to be obstructionist.

Mr. Shields clarified that the city has an obligation to provide suitable premises for the court and
that is why the city is in charge of this project. Jim reminded the public that the current building
across the street is 45 years old and in need of upgrades, especially with security and just the
amount of growth that has happened in those 45 years.

The roll was called on adding the emergency clause and was approved by the yea votes of J.
Shields, C. Simmons, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, and P. Rose. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 084-25 passed by the yea votes of C. Simmons, D. Simpson, J. Coyne,
N. DiSalvo, P. Rose and J. Shields.

Ord. 85-25

An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 209-24, passed November 25, 2024. (Amendments
to 2025 Budget) Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 085-25,
seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Dirham stated this is a pass through. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 085-25 passed by the yea votes of D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo,
P. Rose, J. Shields and C. Simmons.

Council comments.

Mr. Simpson stated the way our economy is going right now, hopefully it will get better but there

6



Medina City Council
April 28, 2025

are a lot of people out there that are suffering, suffering from higher costs on just about everything,
people that have put their savings into 401K’s for their retirement that has been getting hit hard. A
lot of people have lost their jobs with no fault of their own. Be kind to everyone.

Mr. Simmons stated he stopped in the police department and was granted a walk through and to
see all the capabilities was very impressive, well done to the Department. Congratulations to Mr.
Wehrley on the shade tree planting.

Mr. Rose stated Tuesday, May 6™ is a special election day with Issue 2 on the ballot. Make sure
you get out and vote.

Adjournment.
There being no further business, the Council meeting adjourned at 8:06 p.m.

Teresa Knox, Deputy Clerk of Council

John Coyne III, President of Council



WHEREAS:

SEC.1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

RCA 25-095-4/28

RESOLUTION NO. 86-25

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN
APPLICATION FOR GRANT ASSISTANCE FROM THE
OHIO DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENT, OFFICE OF
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, IN CONNECTION WITH
THE SMALL CITIES PY25 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM.

The City of Medina, Ohio intends to apply to the Ohio Department of Development,
Office of Housing and Community Development, for funding under the Small Cities
Community Development Block Grant Program, a federally-funded program
administered by the State of Ohio in the amount of $150,000.00 for the Allocation
Grant for PY2025.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to submit an application for grant
assistance with the Ohio Department of Development, Office of Community
Development, for the Small Cities Community Development Block Grant Program
for the fiscal year 2025 with the funds to be used as follows:

PY2025 CDBG Allocation Grant

Activity No. 1 Medina County Public Transit $75,000.00
Activity No. 2 Code Enforcement $45,000.00
Fair Housing $ 5,000.00

Administration $25.500.00

$150,000.00

That if the Grant is awarded to the City, the Mayor is authorized to accept the grant
and enter into an agreement with the Ohio Department of Development Office of
Community Development for their implementation and administration.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

Res. 86-25



SEC. 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
the law.

PASSED: SIGNED:

President of Council

ATTEST: APPROVED:
Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Res. 86-25



SEC. 1:

City

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 25-097-4/28

ORDINANCE NO. 87-25

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 133.01 OF THE
CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO
RELATIVE TO THE “CITY” ASSOCIATION
MEMBERSHIPS.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That Section 133.01 of the codified ordinances of the City of Medina, Ohio
pertaining to Association Memberships for the “City” shall be amended with the
addition of the following:

HGACBuy Coopertive

That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents to procure
membership for the City.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

January 23, 2023 SIGNED: John M. Covne. 111
President of Council
Kathy Patton APPROVED: January 24, 2023
Clerk of Council
SIGNED: Dennis Hanwell
Mayor

Ord. 87-25



SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 25-098-4/28
ORDINANCE NO. 88-25

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACCEPT
A WATER LINE EASEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION
OF JOB #1181 — S. COURT WATER MAIN LOOP, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized to accept a water line easement for the
construction of Job #1181 — S. Court Water Main Loop.

That a copy of the easement is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated
herein.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be considered an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and for the further
reason this project has already been awarded and would like to commence
construction; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately
upon its passage and signature by the Mayor.

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 88-25



WATER LINE EASEMENT AGREEMENT 0RD. €82 S

THIS WATER LINE EASEMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made
and entered into as of this day of , 2025, by and between Albrecht,
Incorporated, an Ohio corporation (“Grantor”), whose mailing address is 17 S. Main Street,
Suite 401, Akron, OH 44308, and the City of Medina, a municipal corporation organized and
existing under the constitution and the laws of the State of Ohio, its successors and assigns,
forever (“Grantee”), whose address is 132 North Elmwood Avenue, Medina, OH 44256.

RECITALS

1. Grantor is the owner of fee title in and to certain parcels of real estate
(collectively, the “Development Tract”) the majority of which is located in the City of Medina
(the “City”) and the remainder of which is located in the Township of Montville, Medina
County, Ohio, which parcels are more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and
made a part hereof.

2. Grantee is the owner of fee title in and to a parcel of real estate (the “Water
Tower Parcel”) located in the City, which parcel is more particularly described on Exhibit B
attached hereto and made a part hereof (collectively, each parcel constituting the Development
Tract and the Water Tower Parcel are sometimes hereinafter individually called a “Parcel” and
collectively called the “Parcels™).

3. Grantor desires to grant and Grantee desires to receive, upon and subject to the

terms and conditions herein provided, certain easements across a portion of the Development
Tract.

4, The parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement in order to set forth the
terms and conditions governing the easements herein granted.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the sum of Ten and
No/100 Dollars ($10.00), the mutual covenants and agreements of the parties hereto, and other



good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Recitals Incorporated by Reference. The provisions of the foregoing recital
. paragraphs are by this reference herein incorporated ‘as if they had been set forth in the text of -
this Section 1.

2. Grant of Easement. Subject to the terms of this Agreement and to all covenants,
conditions, and restrictions affecting the Parcels, Grantor grants to Grantee a perpetual, non-
exclusive easement (the “Water Line Easement”) in, on, through, under, and across the real
property described in Exhibit C and depicted on Exhibit D, attached hereto and made a part
hereof (the “Easement Area”), for the purpose of constructing, installing, operating,
reconstructing, replacing, removing, repairing, maintaining, inspecting, protecting, renewing, and
relocating (collectively, “Maintaining”) (within the Easement Area), a water line to connect to
Grantee’s water tower located on the Water Tower Parcel (the “Water Line”). Every time prior
to performing any activities affecting the surface of the Easement Area that are reasonably
expected to take more than twenty-four (24) hours to complete, Grantee shall provide Grantor
not less than ten (10) -days’ prior written or telephonic notice, which notice shall describe the
scope of said activities and include a proposed timeline for the completion of said activities.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of an emergency no advance notice by Grantee to
access the Easement Area will be required, provided Grantee shall provide notice of having
accessed the Easement Area as soon as reasonably possible. Upon not less than thirty (30) days’
prior written request, and so long as Grantee’s use of the Laydown Area does not unreasonably
interfere with the operation of any of Grantor’s tenants operating from the Development Tract,
Grantor shall permit Grantee to use an area no greater than an approximately 30’ by 40’ and
generally rectangular area of the Development Tract outside of the Easement Area (a “Laydown
Area”), from time to time, as a laydown area in connection with Maintenance for a period of
time no longer than is reasonably necessary to complete such Maintenance (a “Laydown Area
Use Period”), but in no event longer than thirty (30) days per calendar year in connection with
Maintenance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of an emergency no advance notice by
Grantee to access a Laydown Area will be required, provided, however, that Grantee shall
provide notice of having accessed a Laydown Area as soon as reasonably possible; provided
however, that Grantor may deny access to use a Laydown Area during the months of November
and December in its sole discretion, unless use of a Laydown Area is necessary to repair a break
in the Water Line. At all times, the location of the Laydown Area shall be determined by
Grantor in Grantor’s sole discretion, and Grantor shall have the right to relocate the Laydown
Area, from time to time, and any time, exercised in Grantor’s sole but reasonable determination.
Prior to the end of each Laydown Area Use Period, Grantee shall restore the Laydown Area to
the same condition as delivered to Grantee. In addition to complying with all applicable laws,
regulations, and ordinances, Grantee will keep the Laydown Area and the Easement Area in a
neat, clean, and safe manner at all times when using any portion of the Development Tract.




3. Location of Improvements; Grantee’s Obligations. The Water Line shall be of
a diameter no greater than twelve inches (12”), shall be located completely underground, and
only between five feet (5’) (the “Minimum Water Line Depth”) and seven feet (7’) (the
“Maximum Water Line Depth”) below the surface. Grantee, at Grantee’s sole cost and
expense, shall be solely responsible for the maintenance, repair, and replacement of the Water
Line All rights and obligations of Grantee under this Agreement shall be exercised so as to
interfere as little as practicable with the operations on such Parcels of the owners thereof or their
employees, agents, tenants, invitees or licensees. At no time shall vehicular access to any Parcel
be unreasonably restricted because of the exercise of Grantee’s rights or obligations under this
Agreement. Grantee shall promptly repair any damage to the surface of the Easement Area and
to Grantor's Permitted Improvements (defined below) resulting from the exercise of Grantee’s
rights and obligations under this Agreement. Such repairs shall restore the Easement Area and
the Grantor’s Permitted Improvement to substantially the same condition as existed prior to the
damage. Grantee shall bear all costs associated with such repairs. Grantee shall comply with all
applicable laws, regulations, and ordinances in exercising its rights under this Agreement.

4. Building Restrictions; Grantor Reservations. No buildings shall be
constructed in the Easement Area. Grantor reserves the right, however, to use the Easement
Area to construct, install, operate, reconstruct, replace, remove, repair, maintain, inspect, protect,
renew, and relocate driveways, sidewalks, surface roads, parking areas, curb cuts, landscaping,
and similar improvements in, on, over, through, and across the Easement Area above the
Minimum Water Line Depth, and to construct, install, operate, reconstruct, replace, remove,
repair, maintain, inspect, protect, renew, and relocate (within the Easement Area) underground
utility lines crossing the Water Line in, through, under and across the Easement Area below the
Maximum Water Line Depth (collectively, “Grantor’s Permitted Improvements”).

5. Ingress and Egress. Grantee shall have the right of access over and across the
Easement Area, and the right of ingress and egress, including in and over existing or future
driveways and other routes on portions of the Development Tract as Grantor may reasonably
designate from time to time for the purpose of exercising and enjoying the rights granted in this
Agreement.

6. Temporary Construction Easement: Grantor hereby grants to Grantee the
temporary right and easement on, over, through, under and across a ten (10°)- foot strip
immediately west of the Easement Area (the “Temporary Easement Area”), said Temporary
Easement running parallel to the western boundary of the Easement Area, for the purposes of
excavating in and marshalling workers, material and equipment on the Temporary Easement
Area to facilitate construction and installation of a water line within the Easement Area.

7. Dedication. The Agreement and rights created, reserved, granted, and established
in this Agreement do not, are not intended to, and shall not be construed to create any easements,
rights or privileges in and for the benefit of the general public.



8. Covenant Running with Land. This Agreement and rights created, reserved,
granted, and established in this Agreement shall run with the land and be binding upon, and inure

to the benefit of the respective heirs, devisees, legatees, legal representatives, administrators,
assigns, transferees, and successors of Grantor and Grantee.

9. Notices. All notices and other communications given pursuant to this Agreement
shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly served if delivered in person to the party to

whom it is addressed or upon receipt or refusal of delivery by a nationally recognized overnight
courier, addressed as follows:

If to Grantor: Albrecht, Incorporated
17 South Main Street, Suite 401
Akron, Ohio 44308

It to Grantee: City of Medina
132 North Elmwood Avenue
Medina, OH 44256.

Either party may change the name of the person or address to which notices and other
communications are to be given by so notifying the other party.

10.  Amendment to Easement. This easement contains all agreements, express or
implied, between Grantor and Grantee and may be amended only by a written instrument in
recordable form executed and acknowledged by both Grantor and Grantee.

1. No Merger. The easements established and created by this Agreement shall not
merge or be otherwise impaired or affected by reason of the common ownership of all or any
portion of the parcels benefited and burdened by this Agreement.

12. Encumbrances. The grants herein are accepted by Grantee subject to any and all
encumbrances, reservations, conditions, covenants, easements, and restrictions, if any, of record
or otherwise affecting the use of the Easement Area.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signature and acknowledgement pages follow.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be
executed by their proper officer duly authorized to execute same, upon the dates indicated below.

ALBRECHT, INCORPORATED,
an Ohio corporation

By:

Joseph B. Albrecht, President

CITY OF MEDINA,
a municipal corporation organized and existing

under the constitution and the laws of the State of
Ohio

By:
Name:  DPennis Han «ell
Title: MA»;IOV

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Greg Huber, Law Director




STATE OF OHIO )
COUNTY OF SUMMIT ) ss:

The foregoing was acknowledged before me, a Notary Public, in and for said County by
Joseph B. Albrecht, who is personally known to me and who is the President of ALBRECHT,

INCORPORATED, an Ohio corporation, on behalf of the corporation, this day of
,2025.
Notary Public
STATE OF OHIO )

COUNTY OF SUMMIT ) ss:

The foregoing was acknowledged before me, a Notary Public, in and for said County by _

. who is personally known to me and who is the

of the CITY OF MEDINA, a municipal corporation organized and existing under

the constitution and the laws of the State of Ohio, on behalf of the municipal corporation, this
day of , 2025.

Notary Public

Prepared by:

Jacinto A. Nunez

Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP
50 S. Main Street, Suite 1200

Akron, OH 44308

e



Exhibit A
The Development Tract
Parcel 1

Situated in the City of Medina, County of Medina and State of Ohio: and known as being the
whole of Medina City Lot 9224, containing approximately 11.6963 acres, as shown by Plat
Document #2019PL000008C of the Medina County Recorder’s records.

Parcel Number: 028-19C-20-153

Prior Instrument Reference: Instrument No. 2019PL000008, Medina County Recorder, Medina
County, Ohio.

Parcel 2

Situated in the Township of Montville, County of Medina and State of Ohio being part of Lot 5 & 24
bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at an iron pin set in the East line of said Lot No. 5 S. 0 deg. 50° W., a distance of 1128.24 feet
from the Northeast comer of said lot and in the Westerly right-of-way of S.H. No. 25; thence S. 89 deg.
07" E., a distance of 30.00 feet to a point in the centerline of S.H. No. 25; Thence S. 0 deg. 50' W., with
the centerline of S.H. No. 25, a distance of 175.00 feet to a point; thence N. 89 deg. 07" W. through an
iron pin set 30.00 feet from the centerline of S.H. No. 25 and in the East line of said Lot No. 5, a distance
of 236.72 feet to an iron pin set; thence N. 0 deg. 50' E., a distance of 195.00 feet to an iron pin set;
thence S. 89 deg. 07' E., a distance of 106.72 feet to an iron pin set; thence S. 0 deg. 50' W., a distance of
20.00 feet to an iron pin set; thence S. 89 deg. 07' E, a distance of 100.00 feet to the point of beginning
and containing therein 1.00 acre of land as surveyed August 17, 1962 by Henry L. Perry, Registered
Surveyor No. 4420.

Less and except:

COMMENCING at the point of intersection of the centerline of Wooster Pike, S.R. 3 (width varies)
and the centerline of High Point Drive (80 feet width), said point of intersection being centerline of
right of way and construction station 503+47.77, 0.00T, thence, along the centerline of right of way
and construction, North 00°26'32" West, a distance of 234.28 feet to the southeast corner of said
Albrecht Incorporated parcel, station 505+82.05, 0.00'L and also being the TRUE PLACE OF
BEGINNING for the following described parcel;

thence, South 89°39'27" West, along the south line of said Albrecht Incorporated parcel, (passing
over a 1/2" iron pin in concrete found at 30.37 feet), a distance of 35.00 feet to a 3/4" iron pin capped
"Lewis Land Professionals/ODOT RW" set;

thence, North 00°26'32" West, a distance of 175.00 feet to a 3/4" iron pin capped "Lewis Land
Professionals/fODOT RW" set on a northerly line of said Albrecht parcel;



thence, North 89°39'27" East, (passing over a 1/2" iron pin found at 5.00 feet), a distance of 35.00
feet to the northeast corner of said Albrecht parcel, also being on the centerline of said Wooster Pike,
S.R.3;

- thence, South 00°26'32" East, along the centerline of said Wooster Pike, S.R 3 and the east line of
said Albrecht Incorporated parcel, a distance of 175.00 feet, to the PLACE OF BEGINNING,
containing 0.1406 acres of land, more or less, as determined from a field survey under the direction
of Joseph A. Burgoon, Registered Surveyor No. 8325, in June 2014, for and on behalf of Lewis Land
Professionals, Inc.

The BASIS OF BEARING for this description is North 00°26'32" West along the centerline of
Wooster Pike, S.R. 3, as recorded in Document No. 2008PL000060 of the Medina County Recorder's
Records.

The above described area is contained within the Medina County Auditor's parcel number 030-11A-
01-006 and contains 0.1406 acres, of which 0.1205 acres are in the present road occupied, leaving a
net take of 0.0201 acres.

Containing within said boundaries after said exception .8594 acres of land more or less, subject to all
legal highways.

Tax Parcel No. 030-11A-01-025

Prior Instrument Reference: Instrument Nos. 20090R020256 and 20160R021988, Medina County
Recorder, Medina County, Ohio.



Exhibit B
The Water Tower Parcel
- Situated in the City of Medina, County of Medina and State of Ohio:

and known as being part of Medina City Lot Number 3250
being further bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at the Southeast corner of Medina City
Lot 3250, said point being in the Westerly right-of-way
line of South Court Street, S.R. 3, 60 feet wide; and
ghe grincipal Place of beginning of the parcel deseribed
erein;

Thence N-89°58'08'"-w, along the South line of.
Medina City Lot 3250, 208.00 feet to a.point;

Thence N-00°09'58"-E, 184%.00 feet to a point;

Thence S-B89°58'08'-E, 208.00 feet to a point »
in the Wescterly right-of-way line of South Court Street;

‘ Thence S$-00°09'58"-w, along the Westerly right-of-
way line of South Court Street, 184.00 feet to the
principal place of beginning and containing 0.8786 acres
of land as surveyed in October 1979 by Thomas A.
Cunningham, Registered Surveyor No. 5274.

/—W known as being the )r_h‘gle of Medina City Lot 4811.

288076 PZCAS

Prior Instrument Reference: Book 38, Page 769, Medina County Recorder, Medina County, Ohio.

Parcel Number: 028-19C-20-096



Exhibit C
Legal Description of the Easement Area

[attached]



ALBER & RlCE ' SURVEYING | CIVIL + STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

31913 Cook Road | M Ridgevile | OH | 44039

March 19, 2025

Description of 2 0.1311 Acre Waterline Easement

Located in the City of Medina, County of Medina, State of Ohio and being part of a parcel of
land now ot formerly owned by Albrecht, Incorporated by a deed recorded in Document No.
20080R021236 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records and being part of Medina

City Lot No. 9224

Beginning at the intersection of the centerline of Wooster Pike S.R. 3 a variable width public
right of way and the centerline of High Point Drive an 80° wide public right of way , Thence,

S 89°31'21" W along the center line of said High Point Drive, a distance of 204.66 feet to a
point; Thence, N 00°28'39" W, a distance of 40.00 feet to a point and the true place of beginning;

Thence, S 89°3121" W, along the north right of way line of said High Point Drive, a
distance of 14.13 feet to a point;

Thence, N45°26'32" W, a distance of 45.13 feet to a point;
Thence, N0O0O?26'32™ W, a distance of 83.83 feet to a point;
Thence, SB9°33728™ W, a distance of 24.67 feet to a point;
Thence, N00°26'32" W, a distance of 10.00 feet to a point;
Thence, N89°33'28" E, a distance of 24.67 feet to a point;
Thence, N00°26"32" W, a distance of 176.58 feet to a point;
Thence, SE9°33"28™ W, a distance of 24.67 feet to a point;
Thence, N00°26'32" W, a distance of 10.00 feet to a point;

Thence, N89°33°28" E, a distance of 24.67 feet to a point;

Thence, NOO°26'32" W, a distance of 184.53 feet to a point;



Thence, NR9°40'44" E. a distance of 12.72 feet to a point;
Thence, S 00°26'32" E, along the west line of a parcel of land now or formerly owned by
The City of Medina by a deed recorded in O.R. 38 Pg. 769 of the Medina Recorder's
Records dated 12-26-1976, a distance of 10.00 feet to a point;
Thence, SR9°40'44™ W, a distance of 2.72 feet to a point;
Thence, S00°26'32" E, a distance of 210.75 feet to a point;
Thence, NB9°33728" E. a distance of 4.00 feet to a point;
Thence, S 00°26'32" E, along the west line of a parcel of land now or formerly owned by
Albrecht Incorporated by a deed recorded in Doc. No. 20240R005385 of the Medina
Recorder’s Records dated 04-12-2024, a distance of 10.00 feet 10 a point:
Thence, SR9°33°28" W, a distance of 4.00 feet to a point;
Thence, S00°26'32" E, a distance of 174.76 feet 1o a point;
Thence, NE9"33728" E, a distance of 4.00 feet to a point;
Thence, S00°26'32™ E, a distance of 10.00 feet to a point:
Thence, S89°33°28™ W, a distance of 4.00 feet to a point;
Thence, S00°26'32" E, a distance of 45.27 feet to a point;
Thence, § 45726'32" E, a distance of 50.98 feet to a point and the true place of beginning:
The above described Waterline Easement contains 0.1311 acres as delineated by Thomas J. King
Ir. P.S. #7503 of Alber and Rice Engineers & Surveyors of North Ridgeville, Ohio in March of
2025.

The basis of bearings for this description is grid north Ohio Coordinate System zone north NAD
1983 (201 1) Referenced to ODOT VRS



SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 25-099-4/28
ORDINANCE NO. 89-25

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYORTO ACCEPT
AN ACCESS AND LANDSCAPE EASEMENT AT THE SOUTH
COURT STREET WATER TOWER SITE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized to accept an Access and Landscape Easement at
the South Court Street Water Tower site to allow for a future driveway onto South
Court Street (SR3) to be constructed across a portion of the City’s South Court Street
Water Tower Site at 1215 S. Court Street.

That a copy of the easement is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated
herein.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 89-25



Exhibit D
Depiction of the Easement Area

[attached] -



ACCESS AND LANDSCAPE EASEMENT AGREEMENT  ¢fb. 59-35

THIS ACCESS AND LANDSCAPE EASEMENT AGREEMENT (this
“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this day of , 2025, by and
between the City of Medina, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the
constitution and the laws of the State of Ohio (“Grantor”), whose address is 132 North ElImwood
Avenue, Medina, OH 44256, and Albrecht, Incorporated, an Ohio corporation (“Grantee™),
whose mailing address is 17 S. Main Street, Suite 401, Akron, OH 44308.

RECITALS

A. Grantor is the owner of fee title in and to a parcel of real estate (the “Water Tower
Parcel”) located in the City of Medina, Ohio (the “City”), which parcel is more particularly
described on Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof.

B. Grantee is the owner of fee title in and to certain parcels of real estate (collectively,
the “Development Tract”) the majority of which is located in the City and the remainder of which
is located in the Township of Montville, Medina County, Ohio, which parcels are more particularly
described on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof (collectively, each parcel
constituting the Water Tower Parcel and Development Tract are sometimes hereinafter
individually called a “Parcel” and collectively called the “Parcels”).

C. Grantor desires to grant and Grantee desires to receive, upon and subject to the
terms and conditions herein provided, certain easements across a portion of the Water Tower
Parcel.

D. The parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement in order to set forth the terms
and conditions governing the easements herein granted.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the sum of Ten and No/100
Dollars ($10.00), the mutual covenants and agreements of the parties hereto, and other



good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Recitals Incorporated by Reference. The provisions of the foregoing recital
paragraphs are by this reference herein incorporated as if they had been set forth in the text of this
Section 1.

2. Grant of Easements. Subject to the terms of this Agreement and to all covenants,
conditions, and restrictions affecting the Parcels, Grantor grants to Grantee (a) a perpetual,
exclusive easement (the “Access Easement”) in, on, over, through, under and across the real
property described in Exhibit C and depicted on Exhibit D, attached hereto and made a part hereof
(the “Access Easement Area™), for the purposes of pedestrian and vehicular ingress and egress
between the Development Tract and St. Route 3, installing, reconstructing, replacing, removing,
repairing, maintaining, inspecting, protecting, renewing, relocating (within the Access Easement
Area), and operating an access drive, and equipment and appurtenances thereto (collectively, the
“Access Easement Area Improvements”), and (b) a perpetual, exclusive easement (the
“Landscaping Easement”) in, on, over, through, under and across the real property described in
Exhibit E and depicted on Exhibit D, attached hereto and made a part hereof (together, the
“Landscape Easement Areas”), for the purposes of, planting, installing, reconstructing,
replacing, removing, fertilizing, treating, maintaining, inspecting, protecting, renewing, and
relocating (within the Access Easement Area) landscaping and, at grantee’s election, a sprinkler
systems and equipment and appurtenances thereto (the “Landscaping and Related
Improvements™). Subject to Grantee’s obligation to subsequently construct the Replacement
Fencing, as provided in Section 3, below, Grantee shall have the right to remove Grantor’s existing
fencing located within the Water Tower Parcel as Grantee determines is necessary in connection
with its construction of the Access Easement Area Improvements (the “Removed Fencing™).

3. Grantee’s Obligations. Grantee, at Grantee’s sole cost and expense, shall be
solely responsible for the maintenance, repair, and replacement of the Access Easement Area
Improvements and the Landscaping and Related Improvements (collectively, “Grantee’s
Improvements™), except to the extent the Grantee’s Improvements or any portion thereof are
damaged by the negligence or intentional misconduct of Grantor, Grantor’s, employees,
contractors, or agents. All rights and obligations of Grantee under this Agreement shall be
exercised so as to interfere as little as practicable with the operations on the portions of the Water
Tower Parcel not lying within the Access Easement Area and the Landscape Easement Areas
Easement Areas (collectively, the “Exclusive Easement Areas”) of the owners thereof or their
employees, agents, tenants, invitees or licensees. Grantee shall comply with all applicable laws,
regulations, and ordinances in exercising its rights under this Agreement. Grantee shall also be
responsible, at its sole cost and expense to (a) replace any Removed Fencing with new fencing of
a type and quality substantially similar to the Removed Fencing (the “Replacement Fencing”),
and (b) in conjunction with the construction of the access drive onto SR 3, Grantee shall install a
curb inlet basin on the south side of the driveway installed at the depth necessary to accept the
drain pipe from the Water Tower (c) reimburse Grantor up to $22,600.00 of the actual costs and

2




expenses incurred by Grantor for infrastructure improvements it makes that are necessary to drain
water from the existing water tower located in the Water Tower in a manner not to interfere with
Grantee’s use of the Access Easement Area and the Landscape Easement Area. The Replacement
Fencing shall be installed south of the Landscape Easement Areas at a location reasonably
determined by Graritor. After the initial installation of the Replacement Fencing, Grantee shall

have no further maintenance, repair, or replacement obligations regarding the Replacement
Fencing.

4. Temporary Construction Easement: Grantor hereby grants to Grantee the
temporary right and easement on, over, through, under and across the Water Tower Parcel on a
twenty-foot (20°) strip running east-west and adjoining the southern border of the Landscape
Easement Area (the “Temporary Easement Area”), for the purposes of excavating in and
marshalling workers, material and equipment on the Temporary Easement Area to facilitate
construction and installation of Grantee’s Improvements within the Access Easement Area and the
Landscape Easement Areas. Grantor hereby also grants to Grantee the temporary right and
easement on, over, through, under and across the Water Tower Parcel as is reasonably necessary
for the installation of the Replacement Fencing.

5. Indemnification. Grantee by its acceptance of the easements granted under this
Agreement shall indemnify, defend and hold Grantor harmless against any claims, damages, losses
or expenses arising as a result of Grantee’s exercise of the rights granted by this Agreement, but
excepting any claims, damages, losses or expenses to the extent caused by the negligence or
intentional misconduct of Grantor or Grantor’s agents, employees or contractors.

6. Exclusive. Except for (i) any easements and other similar rights granted to third
parties prior to the date of this Agreement, Grantor shall not grant any other party the right to use
any portion of the Exclusive Easement Areas.

7. Dedication. This Agreement and rights created, granted, and established in this
Agreement do not, are not intended to, and shall not be construed to create any easements, rights
or privileges in and for the benefit of the general public.

8. Covenant Running with Land. This Agreement and rights created, granted, and
established Agreement shall run with the land and be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the
respective heirs, devisees, legatees, legal representatives, administrators, assigns, transferees, and
successors of Grantor and Grantee.

2 Notices. All notices and other communications given pursuant to this Agreement
shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly served if delivered in person to the party to whom
it is addressed or upon receipt or refusal of delivery by a nationally recognized overnight courier,
addressed as follows:



If to Grantor: City of Medina
132 North EiImwood Avenue
Medina, OH 44256

" If to Grantee: Albrecht, Incorporated
17 South Main Street, Suite 401
Akron, Ohio 44308.

Either party may change the name of the person or address to which notices and other
communications are to be given by so notifying the other party.

10.  Amendment to Easement. This Agreement contains all agreements, express or
implied, between Grantor and Grantee and may be amended only by a written instrument in
recordable form executed and acknowledged by both Grantor and Grantee.

11. No Merger. The easements established and created by this Agreement shall not
merge or be otherwise impaired or affected by reason of the common ownership of all or any
portion of the parcels benefited and burdened by this Agreement.

12. Encumbrances. The grants herein are accepted by Grantee subject to any and all
encumbrances, reservations, conditions, covenants, easements, and restrictions, if any, of record
or otherwise affecting the use of the Exclusive Easement Areas.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signature and acknowledgement pages follow.)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed
by their proper officer duly authorized to execute same, upon the dates indicated below.

- CITY OF MEDINA,
a municipal corporation organized and existing
under the constitution and the laws of the State of
Ohio

By:
Name:
Title:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Greg Huber, Law Director

ALBRECHT, INCORPORATED,
an Ohio corporation

By:

Joseph B. Albrecht, President



STATE OF OHIO )
COUNTY OF SUMMIT ) ss:

The foregomg was acknowledged before me, a Notary Public, in and for said County by _

, who is personally known to me and who is the ___

of the CITY OF MEDINA, a municipal corporation organized and existing under

the constitution and the laws of the State of Ohio, on behalf of the municipal corporation, this
day of , 2025.

Notary Public

STATE OF OHIO )
COUNTY OF SUMMIT ) ss:

The foregoing was acknowledged before me, a Notary Public, in and for said County by
Joseph B. Albrecht, who is personally known to me and who is the President of ALBRECHT,

INCORPORATED, an Ohio corporation, on behalf of the corporation, this day of
, 2025.
Notary Public
Prepared by:

Jacinto A. Nunez

Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP
50 S. Main Street, Suite 1200

Akron, OH 44308

a™



Exhibit A
The Water Tower Parcel
Situated in the City of Medina, County of Medina and State of Ohio:

and known as being part of Medina City Lot Number 3250
being further bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at the Southeast corner of Medina City
Lot 3250, said point being in the Westerly right-of-way
line of South Court Street, S.R. 3, 60 feet wide; and
ghe grincipal Place of beginning of the pParcel described
erein;

Thence N-89°58'08'"-w, along the South line of.
Medina City Lot 3250, 208.00 feet to a.point;

Thence N-00°09'58"-E, 184.00 feet to a point;

Thence S5-89°58'08'-E, 208.00 feet to a point :
in the Westerly right-of-way line of South Court Street;

. Thence 5-00°09'58"-w, along the Westerly right«of-
way line of South Court Street, 184.00 feet to the
principal place of beginning and containing 0.8786 acres
of land as surveyed in October 1979 by Thomas A,
Cunningham, Registered Surveyor No. 5274.

Now known as being thelﬁhgle of Medina City Lot 4811.

288076 PZEAN

Prior Instrument Reference: Book 38, Page 769, Medina County Recorder, Medina County, Ohio.

Parcel Number: 028-19C-20-096



Exhibit B

The Development Tract
Parcel 1 -

Situated in the City of Medina, County of Medina and State of Ohio: and known as being the whole
of Medina City Lot 9224, containing approximately 11.6963 acres, as shown by Plat Document
#2019PL000008C of the Medina County Recorder’s records.

Parcel Number: 028-19C-20-153

Prior Instrument Reference: Instrument No. 2019PL000008, Medina County Recorder, Medina
County, Ohio.

Parcel 2

Situated in the Township of Montville, County of Medina and State of Ohio being part of Lot 5 & 24
bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at an iron pin set in the East line of said Lot No. 5 S. 0 deg. 50’ W., a distance of 1128.24 feet
from the Northeast corner of said lot and in the Westerly right-of-way of S.H. No. 25; thence S. 89 deg. 07'
E., a distance of 30.00 feet to a point in the centerline of S.H. No. 25; Thence S. 0 deg. 50' W., with the
centerline of S.H. No. 25, a distance of 175.00 feet to a point; thence N. 89 deg. 07' W. through an iron pin
set 30.00 feet from the centerline of S.H. No. 25 and in the East line of said Lot No. 5, a distance of 236.72
feet to an iron pin set; thence N. 0 deg. 50' E., a distance of 195.00 feet to an iron pin set; thence S. 89 deg.
07' E., a distance of 106.72 feet to an iron pin set; thence S. 0 deg. 50' W., a distance of 20.00 feet to an
iron pin set; thence S. 89 deg. 07' E, a distance of 100.00 feet to the point of beginning and containing
therein 1.00 acre of land as surveyed August 17, 1962 by Henry L. Perry, Registered Surveyor No. 4420.

Less and except:

COMMENCING at the point of intersection of the centerline of Wooster Pike, S.R. 3 (width varies)
and the centerline of High Point Drive (80 feet width), said point of intersection being centerline of
right of way and construction station 503+47.77, 0.00T, thence, along the centerline of right of way
and construction, North 00°26'32" West, a distance of 234.28 feet to the southeast corner of said
Albrecht Incorporated parcel, station 505+82.05, 0.00'L and also being the TRUE PLACE OF
BEGINNING for the following described parcel;

thence, South 89°39'27" West, along the south line of said Albrecht Incorporated parcel, (passing over
a 1/2" iron pin in concrete found at 30.37 feet), a distance of 35.00 feet to a 3/4" iron pin capped "Lewis
Land Professionals/ODOT RW" set;

thence, North 00°26'32" West, a distance of 175.00 feet to a 3/4" iron pin capped "Lewis Land
Professionals/fODOT RW" set on a northerly line of said Albrecht parcel;



thence, North 89°39'27" East, (passing over a 1/2" iron pin found at 5.00 feet), a distance of 35.00 feet
to the northeast corner of said Albrecht parcel, also being on the centerline of said Wooster Pike, S.R.3;

thence, South 00°26'32" East, along the centerline of said Wooster Pike, S.R 3 and the east line of said
Albrecht Incorporated parcel, a distance of 175.00 feet, to the PLACE OF BEGINNING, containing
0.1406 acres of land, more or less, as determined from a field survey under the direction of Joseph A.

Burgoon, Registered Surveyor No. 8325, in June 2014, for and on behalf of Lewis Land Professionals,
Inc.

The BASIS OF BEARING for this description is North 00°26'32" West along the centerline of Wooster
Pike, S.R. 3, as recorded in Document No. 2008PL000060 of the Medina County Recorder's Records.

The above described area is contained within the Medina County Auditor's parcel number 030-11A-

01—006 and contains 0.1406 acres, of which 0.1205 acres are in the present road occupied, leaving a
net take of 0.0201 acres.

Containing within said boundaries after said exception .8594 acres of land more or less, subject to all
legal highways.

Tax Parcel No. 030-11A-01-025

Prior Instrument Reference: Instrument Nos. 20090R020256 and 20160R021988, Medina County
Recorder, Medina County, Ohio.



Exhibit C
Legal Description of the Access Easement Area

- Description of a 0.1337 Acre Access Easement

Located in the City of Medina, County of Medina, State of Ohio and being part of a parcel of
land now or formerly owned by The City of Medina, Ohio, by a deed recorded in O.R. 38 page
769 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records and being Medina City Lot No. 4811.

Beginning at the southeast corner of Medina City Lot No. 9228, South Court Village, as recorded
in Doc. No 2019PL000008 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records. Thence, N 89°3927" E,
along the north line of said Medina City Lot No. 4811, a distance of 7.10 feet to a point and the
true place of beginning;

Thence N 89°39'27" E, along the north line of said Medina City Lot No. 4811, a distance
of 2.90 feet to a point;

Thence S 00°26'32" E, along the west right of way line of said Wooster Pike S.R. 3, a
distance of 37.25 feet to a point on the arc of a non-tangent curve;

Thence northwesterly along the arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 19.50 feet, a
delta angle of 15°55'21", a chord length of 5.40 feet, a chord bearing of N 82°22'53" W,
an arc length of 5.42 feet to a point of tangency;

Thence S 89°3927" W, a distance of 107.27 feet to a point of curvature;

Thence southwesterly along the arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 99.50 feet, a
delta angle of 23°56'50", a chord length of 41.28 feet, a chord bearing of S 77°41'02" W,
an arc length of 41.59 feet to a point of tangency;

Thence S 65°42'37" W, a distance of 44.58 feet to a point of curvature;

Thence southwesterly along the arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 29.50 feet, a
delta angle of 38°32'59", a chord length of 19.48 feet, a chord bearing of S 46°26'08" W,
an arc length of 19.85 feet, to a point of non-tangency;

Thence N 00°26'32" W, along the east line of a parcel of land now or formerly owned by
Albrecht Inc., being Medina City Lot No. 9224, South Court Village, as recorded in Doc.
No 2019PL000008 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records, a distance of 64.50 feet to
a point on the arc of a non-tangent curve;



Thence southeasterly along the arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 29.50 feet, a
delta angle of 86°14'41", a chord length of 40.33 feet, a chord bearing of S 71°10'02" E,
an arc length of 44.40 feet, to a point of tangency;

- Thence N 65°42'37" E, a distance of 7.45 feet to a point of curvature;
Thence northeasterly along the arc of a curve to the right, having a radius of 124.50 feet,
a delta angle of 23°56'50", a chord length of 51.66 feet, a chord bearing of N 77°41'02"
E, an arc length of 52.04 feet to a point of tangency;
Thence N 89°39'27" E, a distance of 91.55 feet to a point of curvature;
Thence northeasterly along the arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 20.00 feet, a
delta angle of 64°50'58", a chord length of 21.45 feet, a chord bearing of N 57°13'58" E,
an arc length of 22.64 feet to a point of non-tangency and the true point of beginning,

The above described contains 0.1337 acres as surveyed by Thomas J. King Jr. P.S. #7503 of
Alber and Rice Engineers and Surveyors of North Ridgeville, Ohio in March of 2025

The basis of bearings for this description is grid north Ohio Coordinate System zone north NAD
1983 (2011) Referenced to ODOT VRS



Exhibit D
Depiction of the Access Easement Area and the Landscape Easement Area

[attached]



o,
MCL 9228 | i
Doc. No. 2019PLO0000S Landscape Easement "A” 3
of the Medina County 3052 Sq. Feet SE. Co
Recorder's Records / . fmer
\ 0.0701 Acres MCL 9228 L-7
NB9'39°27°t  198.00'

J03 NUMBER
2409-20

3/1/15 WL Lot Murber |

L-1z

LOCATED IN THE CITY OF MEDINA,
COUNTY OF MEDINA, STATE OF OHIO
BEING PART OF MCL 9224

WATERLINE EASEMENT

R

7

Landscope Easement "B”

0y

s 4310 Sq. Feet
A Access Laosement 0.0990 Acres
5825 Sq. Fect
0.1337 Acres
MCL 4811
O.R. 38 P.G. 769
12-26-1979
8=
o Mdmm
x [
5 3535
— E g
= ? Water Tower _.mm %
<4 Medina County Records ' =58 m
) g~
7] Doc. 20000R027069 ! -3 b}
Lease Site ! .mmm
)
1

Thomas J. King Jr. P.S. §7503 Date

CVIL + STRUCTURAL + SURVEY
28-252-T840 Office

ALBER & RICE
uswulmm:km

o




NORTH

o 60"
SCALE 1"=60'
LINE BEARING DISTANCE
-1 NO0'26'32°W  |37.25°
L2 SBT3 27 W 107.27
-3 S6542°37W  [44.58"
L—4 00°26'32°W  [64.50°
L=5 NGS'42°37°E 7.45
L6 NB9'39°27°F 91.55"
L7 N89°39'27°F 2.90°
) S65°42°37W  [4.46
~ SBYJI2BW  [5.43
L -10 N89'39'27°E 7.10°
L—-11 N(OO'26'32°W 1.99"
=12 NBY'39°27°E 20511
=13 S(0°26 32°E 19.25°
|—-14 SBI°3927°W  [112.66°
L-15 S65'42°37°W  |44.58
L-16 SBY" 33 28°W 16.64
L-17 NOO'26'32°W  [13.67
CURVE RADIUS ARC LENGTH CHORD LENGTH CHORD BEARING DELTA ANGLE
C-1 19.50° 5.42° 5.40° NBZ22'53°W 15'55'21°
C-2 99.50° 41.59 41,28° SIT4102°W 2556 50°
C-3 29.50° 19.85° 19.48° S46°26'0B'W 3832'59"
C-4 29.50° 44.40° 40.33" S71°10°02°E 86'14'41"
C-5 24.50° 52.04' 51.66° N7T41'02°E 2356'50"
(o] 20.00° 22.64 21.45 NS7T1358°E §4'50°58"
C-7 112.00° 46.81° 46.47 S7741°02 2556'50"
C- 100.00° 41.62° 41.32° S7738°03'W 2350517
C-¢ 79.50° 33.23 32.99° S774102°W 2356'50"
C-10 8.50° 10.97° 10.37° S3ZI7T55W 66'09°25°




Exhibit E
Legal Description of the Landscape Easement Areas

Area A

Located in the City of Medina, County of Medina, State of Ohio and being part of a parcel of
land now or formerly owned by The City of Medina, Ohio, by a deed recorded in O.R. 38 page
769 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records and being Medina City Lot No. 4811.

Beginning at the southeast corner of Medina City Lot No. 9228, South Court Village, as recorded
in Doc. No 2019PL000008 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records;

Thence, N 89°39'27" E, along the north line of said Medina City Lot No. 4811, a distance
of 7.10 feet to a point on the arc of a non-tangent curve;

Thence southwesterly along an arc to the right, having a radius of 20.00 feet, a delta
angle of 64°50'58", a chord length of 21.45 feet, a chord bearing of S 57°13'58" W, an arc
length of 22.64 feet to a point of tangency;

Thence S 89°39'27" W, a distance of 91.55 feet to a point of curvature;

Thence southwesterly along an arc to the left, having a radius of 124.50 feet, a delta angle
0f 23°56'50", a chord length of 51.66 feet, a chord bearing of S 77°41'02" W, an arc
length of 52.04 feet to a point of tangency;

Thence S 65°42'37" W, a distance of 7.45 feet to a point of curvature;

Thence northwesterly along an arc to the right, having a radius of 29.50 feet, a delta angle
of 86°14'41", a chord length of 40.33 feet, a chord bearing of N 71°10'02" W, an arc
length of 44.40 feet, to a point of non-tangency;

Thence N 00°26'32" W, along the east line of a parcel of land now or formerly owned by
Albrecht Inc., being Medina City Lot No. 9224, South Court Village, as recorded in Doc.
No 2019PL000008 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records, a distance of 11.99 feet to
a point;

Thence N 89°39'27" E, along the north line of said Medina City Lot No. 4811, a distance
of 198.00 feet to a point and the true place of beginning;

The above described 0.0701 Acre Landscape Easement as delineated by Thomas J. King Jr. P.S.
#7503 of Alber and Rice Engineers & Surveyors of North Ridgeville, Ohio in March of 2025.



The basis of bearings for this description is grid north Ohio Coordinate System zone north NAD
1983 (2011) Referenced to ODOT VRS

© AreaB:

Located in the City of Medina, County of Medina, State of Ohio and being part of a parcel of
land now or formerly owned by The City of Medina, Ohio, by a deed recorded in O.R. 38 page
769 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records and being Medina City Lot No. 4811.

Beginning at the southeast corner of Medina City Lot No. 9228, South Court Village, as recorded
in Doc. No 2019PL000008 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records. Thence, N 89°39'27" E,
along the north line of said Medina City Lot No. 4811, a distance of 10.00 feet to a point;
Thence, S 00°26'32" E, along the west right of way line of Wooster Pike S.R. 3 a variable width
public right of way, a distance of 37.25 feet to a point and the true place of beginning;

Thence S 00°26'32" E, along the west right of way line of said Wooster Pike S.R. 3, a distance of
19.25 feet to a point;

Thence S 89°39'27" W, a distance of 112.66 feet to a point of curvature;

Thence, southwesterly along the arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 79.50 feet, a delta
angle of 23°56'50", a chord length of 32.99 feet, a chord bearing of S 77°41'02" W, an arc length
of 33.23 feet to a point of tangency;

Thence S 65°42'37" W, a distance of 44.58 feet to a point of curvature;

Thence southwesterly along the arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 9.50 feet, a delta
angle of 66°09'25", a chord length of 10.37 feet, a chord bearing of S 32°37'55" W, an arc length
of 10.97 feet to a point of non-tangency;

Thence S 89°3328" W, a distance of 16.64 feet to a point;

Thence N 00°26'32" W, along the east line of a parcel of land now or formerly owned by
Albrecht Inc., being Medina City Lot No. 9224, South Court Village, as recorded in Doc. No
2019PL000008 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records, a distance of 13.67 feet to a point on
the arc of a non-tangent curve;

Thence northeasterly along the arc of a curve to the right, having a radius of 29.50 feet, a delta
angle of 38°32'59", a chord length of 19.48 feet, a chord bearing of N 46°26'08" E, an arc length
of 19.85 feet to a point of tangency;

Thence N 65°42'37" E, a distance of 44.58 feet to a point of curvature;



Thence northeasterly along the arc of a curve to the right, having a radius of 99.50 feet, a delta
angle of 23°56'50", a chord length of 41.28 feet, a chord bearing of N 77°41'02" E, an arc length
of 41.59 feet, to a point of tangency;

Thence N 89°39'27" E, a distance of 107.27 feet to a point of curvature;

Thence, southeasterly along the arc of a curve to the right, having a radius of 19.50 feet, a delta
angle of 15°55'21", a chord length of 5.40 feet, a chord bearing of S 82°22'53" E, an arc length of
5.42 feet, to a point of non-tangency and the true place of beginning;

The above described 0.0990 Acre Landscape Easement as delineated by Thomas J. King Jr. P.S.
#7503 of Alber and Rice Engineers & Surveyors of North Ridgeville, Ohio in March of 2025.

The basis of bearings for this description is grid north Ohio Coordinate System zone north NAD
1983 (2011) Referenced to ODOT VRS

Thence, S 00°26'32" E, along the west right of way line of said Wooster Pike S.R. 3, a
distance of 10.91 feet to a point of non-tangency;

Thence, northwesterly along an arc to the left, having a radius of 9.50 feet, a delta angle
of 34°24'35", a chord length of 5.62 feet, a chord bearing of N 73°08'15" W, an arc length of
5.71 feet to a point of tangency;

Thence, S 89°39'27" W, a distance of 107.27 feet to a point of tangency;

Thence, southwesterly along an arc to the left, having a radius of 89.50 feet, a delta angle
0f23°56'50", a chord length of 37.14 feet, a chord bearing of S 77°41'02" W, an arc length of
37.41 feet to a point of tangency;

Thence, S 65°42'37" W, a distance of 42.87 feet to a point;
Thence, S 46°22'01" W, a distance of 27.18 feet to a point;

Thence, N 00°26'32" W, along the east line of land now or formerly owned by Albrecht
Inc., Medina City Lot No. 9224 as recorded in Doc. No 2019PL000008,a distance of 13.75 feet
to a point of non-tangency;

Thence, northeasterly along an arc to the right, having a radius of 29.5 feet, a delta angle
of 38°32'59", a chord length of 19.48 feet, a chord bearing of N 46°26'08" E, an arc length of
19.85 feet to a point of tangency;

Thence, N 65°42'37" E, a distance of 44.58 feet to a point of tangency;



Thence, northeasterly along an arc to the right, having a radius of 99.50 feet, a delta angle
0f 23°56'50", a chord length of 41.28 feet, a chord bearing of N 77°41'02" E, an arc length of
41.59 feet to a point of tangency;

- Thence, N 89°39'27" E, a distance of 107.27 feet to a point 6f tangency;
Thence, southeasterly along an arc to the right, having a radius of 19.50 feet, a delta angle

of 15°55'21", a chord length of 5.40 feet, a chord bearing of S 82°22'53" E, an arc length of 5.42
feet to a point of non-tangency and the true place of beginning;



SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 25-103-4/28

ORDINANCE NO. 90-25

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER
INTO A CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT WITH ALBRECHT,
INC. REGARDING THE HIGHPOINT DRIVE WIDENING,
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into a Construction Agreement with
Albrecht, Inc. regarding the Highpoint Drive widening.

That a copy of the Construction Agreement is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated herein.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be considered an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and for the further
reason to have improvements open to the public in conjunction with the opening of
the Acme grocery store; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect
immediately upon its passage and signature by the Mayor.

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 90-25



Ord. 90-25

Exhibit A
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT
TO: The Mayor and Council of the City of Medina, Ohio
ATTENTION: City Engineer
RE: Highpoint Drive Widening

Gentlemen:

ALBRECHT, INCORPORATED (the developer), agrees and by this writing guarantees the
construction and installation of the improvements listed below pursuant to Title Nine of the Code
of Ordinances of the City of Medina, Ohio, as amended, within the time authorized for completion
and in accordance with all applicable ordinances of the City of Medina.

It is hereby understood and agreed that ALBRECHT, INCORPORATED, developer, shall provide the
following improvements and facilities to be installed at the developers expense in compliance with
the standards and specifications for each of the following various types of improvements:

1. Construction of a west bound deceleration lane on High Point Drive substantially in
accordance with the construction documents prepared by Thrasher, and approved
by the City Engineer, City of Medina on [INSERT DATE].

2. Construction of Storm Sewers
3. Construction of Pavements
4. Construction of Sidewalks

If the improvements are not completed on or before October 31, 2025, the City, upon proper
notice, may complete the improvements and recover full costs and reasonable expenses, provided
said costs and expenses are substantiated, thereof from ALBRECHT, INCORPORATED and may
appropriate such portion of money or bonds posted for the faithful performance of said works.

In witness whereof, authorized representatives of the parties to this agreement, indicating their
party’s approval of the terms herein, have signed as of the dates set forth below:

ALBRECHT, INC. (DEVELOPER)

BY:

(Signature)

Name:

(Please print of type)



CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO

BY:

(Signature)

" Name: Dennis Hanwell, Mavor, Citv of Medina




STATE OF OHIO:
SS:
MEDINA COUNTY:

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County, this day personally appeared the above

named ALBRECHT, INCORPORATED, Developer, by

its , who acknowledged that he/she did sign the foregoing

instrument and that the same is the free act and deed of said Developer, and the free act and deed of

himself personally as such officer.

Witness my signature and notarial seal at, . Ohio, this day
of , 20
Notary Public
STATE OF OHIO:
ss:
MEDINA COUNTY:

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County, this day personally appeared the above-

named CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO, by

its . who acknowledged that he/she did sign the foregoing

instrument and that the same is the free act and deed of said CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO, and the free
act and deed of himself personally as such officer.

Witness my signature and notarial seal at , Ohio, this day

of » 20

Notary Public




APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Greg Huber, City of Medina Law Director



SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 25-105-4/28

ORDINANCE NO. 91-25

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER
INTO A LOCATION RELEASE AND VIDEO CONTENT
RELEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF MEDINA AND
AMERICAN DREAM MEDIA AND TECH HOLDINGS, LLC,
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to enter into a Location Release and
Video Content Release with American Dream Media and Tech Holdings, LLC for a
promotional video to be recorded for the Medina Community Recreation Center.

That a copy of the Location Release and Video Content Release is marked Exhibit A,
attached hereto and incorporated herein.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be considered an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and for the further
reason to expedite this agreement; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and
effect immediately upon its passage and signature by the Mayor.

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 91-25



ORD 41-25
PRODUCTION DOCUMENTS
LOCATION RELEASE

LOCATION RELEASE

Medina Recreation Center hereby grant American Dream Media and Tech Holdings, LLC ("Company"),
its affiliates, successors, assigns, licensees, and anyone authorized by them (coliectively referred to
as the "Released Parties"), the irrevocable and unrestricted right to use, reproduce, and distribute
any and all photographs, audio recordings, video recordings, and/or other media captured at the
location known as Medina Recreation Center(the "Material") filmed on TBD.

| represent and warrant that | am the owner/landlord or have the authority to grant permission for
the use of the location, and | hereby authorize the Company to enter and film/photograph at the
location.

I understand and agree that the Material may be used in all forms of media, including but not limited
to television broadcasts, cable and digital streaming platforms, advertising, marketing, social media,
promotional materials, and any other purposes deemed appropriate by the Company in connection
with the television/online production entitled "The American Dream/Operation American Dream."

I hereby waive any right to inspect or approve the finished product wherein the Material appears,
including written copy or artwork that may be created in connection therewith, or the use to which
it may be applied.

I release and discharge the Released Parties from any and all claims, demands, or causes of action
that | may have now or in the future, whether known or unknown, arising out of or in connection with

the use of the Material.

I understand that my permission for the Company to film/photograph at the location is voluntary,
and | will not receive any financial compensation for the use of the Material.

This Location Release shall be binding upon me and my heirs, legal representatives, and assigns.

I have read and understood the terms of this Location Release and voluntarily agree to them.

Signature:

Printed Name: _Dennis Haun well  Mousor

Date:




A "t ORD.4-25
N PRODUCTION DOCUMENTS
‘ VIDEC CONTENT RELEASE AGREEMENT

VIDEG CONTENT RELEASE AGREEMENT

L]

. . H vk ™ .
! hereby grant and authorize 85T SlelrbachE/ADIY tha right to

take, edit, alter, copy, exhibit, publish, distribute and make use of any and al! video content
created by me, o be usad in and/or for any lawful purposa.

This authorization sxtends to all languages, media, formats and markets now known or later
discovered.

This authorization shali continue indefinitely, unless | otherwiss revoke this authorization in
writing,

waiva the right to inspect or approva any finished product in which my likeness appears.
I agree that | have been compensated for this use of my likensss or have otherwise agreed to
this retsase without being compensated. } waive any right to royalties or other compensation

arising or related 0 the use of the video.

i undersiand and agree that these matsrials shall become the property of _Larry Steinbacher/ADTV

and wilf not be refurned.

Ihersby hold harmless and relsasalarsy Steinbacher/ADTV . irom all fiability, petitions, and
causes of action which |, my heirs, representatives, executors, administrators, or any other
tersons may make while acting on my behalf or on bahalf of my astate.

Printed Name: “Dganje, H'aj\ well Mﬂ-gﬂff’



SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 25-106-4/28

ORDINANCE NO. 92-25

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER
INTO A LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF MEDINA AND
THE MEDINA METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
TO RENOVATE AND USE THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT
135 N. ELMWOOD AVE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to enter a Lease between the City of
Medina and the Medina Metropolitan Housing Authority to renovate and use the
property located at 135 N. Elmwood Avenue for MMHA operations upon the
Municipal Court moving to the 1969 Courthouse on the Square in 2026.

That a copy of the Lease is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated
herein, and subject to the final approval of the Law Director.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 92-25



5
b, 9372
LEASE O in
This Lease is made on this day of , 20___ by and

between the CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO, an Ohio municipal corporation, 132 North Elmwood
Avenue, Medina, Ohio 44256, as "Lessor," and MEDINA METROPOLITAN HOUSING
AUTHORITY, a public body, corporate and politic organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Ohio, 120 W. Washington Street, Suite 1-L, Medina, Ohio 44256, as "Lessee."

WITNESSETH:
ARTICLE 1. DEMISED PREMISES

1.1. Lessor hereby leases to the Lessee the real property situated in the City of Medina,
County of Medina, and State of Ohio commonly known as 135 N. Elmwood, Medina, Ohio 44256
(previous site of the Medina Municipal Court), identified as Medina County PPN 028-19A-21-
092, containing approximately 0.956200 acres of land including the use of the parking lot, the
aerial depiction of which is set forth on Exhibit A, hereinafter called "demised premises."

1.2, Lessorreserves the right to shared use of the entire parking lot located on PPN 028-
19A-21-092. The parking lot shall always be available to the public for public parking purposes.

1.3 Lessor shall have the right to store documents and records in the lower level of the
building located on the demised premises provided that such storage of documents and records
shall not materially limit Lessee’s occupancy of the demised premises. Lessor shall have access
to its documents and records at all reasonable times and upon prior notification to Lessee. Lessor
shall bear the risk of damage or loss to any of the stored documents or records solely, unless such
damage or loss is caused by the negligence of Lessee, its employees, or agents.

1.4 Lessee accepts the demised premises "AS IS," "WHERE IS" and "WITH ALL
FAULTS" and agrees that neither Lessor nor any of its agents or employees have made any other
representations or warranties, either written or oral, express or implied, with respect to the
condition, suitability, state of repair or zoning of the demised premises. Lessee waives, releases
and forever discharges Lessor, and Lessor's heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns,
of and from any and all suits, legal or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, damages,
losses, costs, liabilities, interest, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses of whatever kind and
nature, in law or in equity, known or unknown, that Lessee has or in the future may have against
any such persons based upon, or arising directly or indirectly out of, the condition, status, quality,
or nature of the demised premises as of the date of possession of this Lease. Lessee agrees to
assume all repair, maintenance and renewal obligations with respect to the demised premises after
the date of possession with the exception of the parking lot, which the Lessor agrees to continue
repair and maintain at Lessor’s sole cost and major repairs or replacement to the structural
components of the building and roof, the division of cost for which is set forth in Article 10 below.

22626130 _|



ARTICLE 2. TERM OF LEASE

To have and to hold for a term of three (3) years to commence within forty-five (45) days
after the Lessor informs the Lessee that the demised premises has been vacated by the Lessor;
provided however, that the same occurs prior to August 1, 2026. If the Lessor has not vacated the
demised premises by August 1, 2026, either party shall have the right to terminate the Lease by
providing written notice to the other.

ARTICLE 3. RENT

The parties hereto agree that there shall be no exchange of rent as between the Lessor and
the Lessee for the use of the demised premises. Consideration for this agreement shall be
established by way of payment from Lessee to Lessor of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00). The
parties, however, state that the rights and responsibilities granted under this Lease, including
alterations, improvements, and additions made by Lessee to the demised premises, provide legal
consideration for the formation of this Lease, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged.

ARTICLE 4. UTILITIES

4.1.  Lessee covenants and agrees to pay for all public utility services rendered or
furnished to the demised premises, including heat, water, gas, electricity, sewer rental, security
monitoring costs, and the like, together with all taxes levied or other charges on such utilities. In
no event shall Lessor be liable for the quality, quantity, failure, or interruption of such service to
the demised premises. To the extent reasonably possible, utilities shall be put into Lessee's name.

4.2.  Lessor may, with ten (10) days' written notice to Lessee, discontinue gas, water,
electricity, and any or all other utilities, whenever such discontinuance is necessary to make repairs
or alterations. Unless the parties otherwise agree, in no event shall utilities be discontinued by
Lessor for more than three (3) consecutive business days. No such action by Lessor pursuant to
this Section 4.2 shall be construed as an eviction or disturbance of possession or as an election by
Lessor to terminate this Lease, nor shall Lessor be in any way responsible or liable for such action.

ARTICLE 5. QUIET ENJOYMENT

Subject to the terms of this Lease, Lessor covenants and agrees that if Lessee is in
compliance with the terms hereof and performs all of the covenants and agreements herein
stipulated to be performed, Lessee shall, at all times during said term, have the peaceful and quiet
enjoyment and possession of said demised premises without any manner of hindrance from Lessor
or any persons lawfully claiming through Lessor.

ARTICLE 6. USE OF PREMISES
6.1.  The demised premises shall be occupied and used by Lessee as its main office space

for Lessee’s staff consistent with the operation of Lessee’s mission as a Housing Authority for the
County of Medina.

22626130 _1 2



6.2.  Lessee shall comply with and cause the demised premises to be in compliance
with all laws, ordinances, and regulations, and other governmental rules, orders, and
determinations, including but not limited to, the Americans with Disabilities Act, now in force or
subsequently enacted, whether or not presently contemplated (collectively "Legal Requirements")
applicable to the demised premises or its use and all contracts (including insurance policies),
agreements, covenants, conditions and restrictions applicable to the demised premises or the
ownership, occupancy or use of same.

6.3.  Lessee covenants and agrees that the demised premises shall not be abandoned or
left vacant and shall be used in a manner suitable to the purpose for which the building is being
leased. In addition, Lessee agrees as follows:

a. To keep the demised premises in a careful, safe, and proper manner; to
keep the outside areas adjoining the demised premises clean of snow, ice,
and debris, with the exception of the parking lot which will be plowed and
salted by the Lessor, at Lessor’s sole cost; and

b. To prevent the demised premises from being used in any way which
would injure the reputation of same or of the building; to prevent the
demised premises from becoming a nuisance, annoyance,
inconvenience, or damage to others in the neighborhood.

6.4.  Lessee covenants and agrees not to use or occupy or suffer or permit said demised
premises or any part thereof to be used or occupied for any purpose contrary to law or the rules or
regulations of any public authority or in any manner so as to increase the cost of hazard insurance
to the Lessor over and above the normal cost of said insurance for the type and location of the
building of which the demised premises is a part or for the approved purpose as set forth in Article
6.1 above. If the Lessee shall install any electrical equipment that overloads the lines in the demised
premises, Lessee shall, at its own expense, make whatever changes are necessary to comply with
the requirements of insurance underwriters and governmental authorities having jurisdiction
thereof.

6.5. [Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, this Lease is a "net"
Lease. Lessee shall pay all charges due under this Lease without notice or demand and free from
any charges, taxes, assessments, impositions, claims, damages, expenses, deductions, setoffs,
counterclaims, abatement, suspension or defense of any kind. Subject to the foregoing sentence,
it is the intention of the parties that the obligations of Lessee shall be separate and independent
covenants and that the monetary obligations and all other charges payable by Lessee shall continue
to be payable in all events, and that the obligations of Lessee shall continue unaffected unless the
requirement to pay or perform the same shall have been terminated or modified pursuant to an
express provision of this Lease. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Lease, Lessee
shall pay and be responsible to Lessor for all costs, expenses, obligations, liabilities, and acts
necessary to and for the proper use, operation, maintenance, care and occupancy of the demised
premises.

22626130 _| 3



6.6.  All persons using the demised premises will be treated fairly and equally without
regard to race, color, religion, sex, familial status, disability, national origin, or source of income.

ARTICLE 7. SIGNS

Lessee may after Lessor's review and written approval, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, at its sole risk and expense and in conformity with
applicable laws and ordinances, erect and thereafter, repair or replace, if it shall so elect, signs on
the demised premises provided that Lessee shall remove any such signs upon termination of this
lease and repair all damage occasioned thereby to the demised premises.

ARTICLE 8. ALTERATION

The Lease is executed with the anticipation of Lessee making improvements to the demised
premises as consideration for Lessee’s occupancy. Lessee covenants and agrees that all alterations,
improvements, and/or additions to the demised premises or any part thereof, shall be made with
the written consent of the Lessor. All alterations, improvements, and additions to the demised
premises shall be made in accordance with all applicable laws, and shall, at once when made or
installed, be deemed to have attached to the freehold and to have become the property of Lessor,
and shall remain for the benefit of Lessor at the end of the term or the expiration of this Lease in
as good order and condition as they were when installed, reasonable wear and tear excepted. In
the event of making alterations, improvements, and additions as herein provided, Lessee agrees to
indemnify and save harmless Lessor from all expense, liens, claims, or damages to either persons
or property arising out of or resulting from the undertaking or making of said alterations, additions,
and/or improvements.

ARTICLE 9. MECHANIC'S LIEN

Any mechanic's lien filed as against the demised premises for work claimed to have been
done or for materials claimed to have been furnished to Lessee shall be discharged within twenty
(20) days after filing by bonding or as provided or required by law or in any other lawful manner.

Nothing in this Lease shall be construed as constituting the consent or request of Lessor,
express or implied, to any contractor, subcontractor, laborer, materialman or vendor for the
performance of any labor or services or the furnishing of any materials for any construction,
alteration, addition or repair to the demised premises. Lessor gives notice that it will not be liable
for any labor, services or materials furnished or to be furnished to Lessee, or to anyone holding
the demised premises or any part or interest in the demised premises through or under Lessee, and
that no mechanic's or other lien for any such labor or materials shall attach to or affect Lessor's
interest in the demised premises.

ARTICLE 10. MAINTENANCE
Except as otherwise provided in this Lease, Lessee, at its sole expense, shall keep and

maintain the building, roof, structure, mechanical systems and all additions, improvements and all
other portions of the demised premises (including, but not limited to, non-major components of all

22626130 _1 4



heating, air conditioning, plumbing and electrical equipment and apparatus and landscaping) in
good repair and condition and shall make all repairs, replacements and renewals, foreseen or
unforeseen, ordinary or extraordinary, interior or exterior, necessary to put or maintain the demised
premises in that state of repair and condition as of the commencement date of this Lease,
reasonable wear and tear excepted.

If Lessee fails to commence to make such repairs within thirty (30) days after written notice from
Lessor, or fails to complete such repairs within ninety (90) days after written notice from Lessor
(except where there has occurred an event of a force majeure nature whereupon such time periods
shall be extended as is reasonable under the circumstances or in case of emergency where
imminent waste to the demised premises is either occurring or likely whereupon the above time
periods shall be shortened to five (5) and thirty (30) days, respectively), Lessor, at its option, may
make such repairs and Lessee shall pay Lessor on demand Lessor's actual costs in making such
repairs, plus a fee of five percent (5%) to cover Lessor's overhead, provided that Lessor has acted
in a commercially reasonable manner in connection with the making of and contracting for such
repairs.

Notwithstanding any provision in this Lease to the contrary, the Lessor shall repair and maintain
the parking lot, at Lessor’s sole cost.

Notwithstanding any provision in this Lease to the contrary, Lessee shall pay the first $5,000 of
the cost of any repair or replacement of the roof or a structural component of the building. Lessee
shall be responsible to pay a portion of any repair or replacement cost in excess of $5,000 by
dividing the number of months remaining in the lease by the useful life of the replacement or
repair. For example, if there is a roof replacement in the first month of the lease with a useful life
of 240 months, Lessee shall pay 35/240, or fourteen percent (14%) of the amount over $5,000;
Lessor shall pay the balance.

ARTICLE 11. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

11.1. To the extent permitted by law, Lessee covenants and agrees that it will protect and
save and keep the Lessor forever harmless and against and from any penalty or damage or charges
imposed for any violation of any law or ordinance, whether occasioned by the neglect of Lessee
or those holding under Lessee, and that Lessee will, at all times, protect, indemnify and save and
keep harmless the Lessor against and from all claims, loss, cost, damage, or expense arising out of
or from any accident or other occurrence on or about the demised premises causing injury to any
person or property, and will protect, indemnify, save, and keep harmless the Lessor against and
from any and all claims and against and from any and all loss, cost, damage, or expense arising
out of any failure of Lessee in any respect to comply with and perform all the requirements and
provisions of this Lease.

11.2. To the extent permitted by law, Lessee covenants and agrees that it shall indemnify
Lessor and save Lessor harmless from any and all claims and judgments for injury to or death to
persons (including cost of litigation and attorney fees) made or obtained against Lessor by third
parties, based upon injuries to persons arising out of any accident or other occurrence on or about
the demised premises or in any manner caused by, incidental to, connected with, resulting or

22626130 _| 5



arising out of this Lease Agreement. The provisions of this Article 11.2 shall not include claims
arising as a result of the willful actions or negligence of Lessor, its employees or agents.

11.3.  Lessee agrees that, at its own cost and expense, it will procure and continue in force
general liability insurance covering any and all claims for injuries to persons occurring in, upon,
or about the demised premises, including all damage from signs, glass, awnings, fixtures or other
appurtenances now or hereafter erected on the demised premises during the term of this Lease,
such insurance at all times to be in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)
for injury to any one person, and not less than Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) for injuries to
more than one person in one accident. Such insurance shall name the Lessor as an additional
named insured and shall be written with a company or companies engaged in business of general
liability insurance in Ohio, and there shall be delivered to the Lessor customary insurance
certification evidencing such paid up insurance, and such insurance shall not be canceled without
at least thirty (30) days' advance notice, in writing, to the Lessor. In the event Lessee fails to
furnish such policies, the Lessor may obtain such insurance and the premiums on such insurance
shall be deemed additional rent to be paid by the Lessee unto the Lessor upon demand.

11.4.  Lessee agrees that, at its own cost and expense, it will procure and continue in force
insurance covering property damage to the demised premises in an amount not less than one
hundred percent (100%) of the replacement cost, the exact amount to be approved by Lessor.
Lessee agrees to make Lessor an additional insured on the insurance policy as stated herein. The
parties agree to coordinate their efforts for the periodic review of the value of the demised premises
so the amount of the property damage insurance may be properly adjusted.

11.5  If Lessee fails to effect, maintain, or renew any insurance as required in this Lease
or to pay the premiums for the same, or to deliver to Lessor any required certificates, then in
addition to any other remedy available to Lessor, Lessor may (but shall not be obligated to) procure
such insurance. Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for all amounts so paid within five (5) days after
Lessor notifies Lessee of the payment.

ARTICLE 12. REAL ESTATE TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS

If applicable, Lessee shall pay all real estate taxes and assessments, if any, with respect to
the demised premises during the term of this Lease. When the actual bills for real estate taxes, if
any, covering the term of this Lease are rendered by the taxing authority, Lessor shall provide the
bill to Lessee, and Lessee shall forthwith pay to Lessor the actual amount of taxes due Lessor
during Lessee’s possession. Lessor agrees to coordinate with Lessee in any application with the
taxing authority for the abatement of real property taxes due to Lessee’s status as a public body,
corporate and politic.

ARTICLE 13. DESTRUCTION BY FIRE OR CASUALTY
If the demised premises shall be totally destroyed by fire or other casuaity covered by
Lessee's policy of fire and extended coverage during the period of this Lease, then Lessor shall

have the option to rebuild or to terminate the Lease. Lessee shall maintain fire and extended
coverage insurance on the building and improvements of the demised premises in an amount not

22626130 _1 6



less than one hundred percent (100%) of the replacement cost, the exact amount to be approved
by Lessor. Lessor shall be named as an additional insured on the said fire and/or casualty insurance
policy. Lessee shall not be liable for fire or casualty costs to the demised premises which exceed
the replacement value set forth in the insurance policy. If the demised premises are destroyed
during the period of this Lease and Lessor decides to not rebuild, Lessee shall be entitled to a
portion of the insurance proceeds equal to the cost of improvements that Lessee can document
establlshmg the amount of money that Lessee spent on improvements to and maintenance of the
premises prorated to present dollar value.

ARTICLE 14. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION CLAIMS

Lessor and Lessee hereby waive any claim of subrogation by an insurer against the other
party for loss or damage to their respective real and/or personal property located at or within the
demised premises resulting from any of the perils insured against in any fire and extended coverage
or property or indemnity insurance carried by either Lessor or Lessee, whether or not negligently
caused by the other party; however the parties agree that a waiver of subrogation shall not apply
in any case in which the application would result in the invalidation of an applicable policy of
insurance.

ARTICLE 15. PROPERTY IN DEMISED PREMISES

15.1. All fixtures, additions, improvements, and installations provided by Lessee shall at
once when furnished or installed be deemed to have attached to the freehold and to have become
the property of Lessor and shall not be removed by Lessee during or at the expiration of the term
hereof unless Lessee is so directed as hereinbefore provided.

15.2. All Lessee's personal property of every kind or description, which may at any time
be in the demised premises, shall be at Lessee's sole risk, or the risk of those claiming under Lessee,
and Lessor shall not be liable for any damage to said property or loss suffered by the business or
occupation of Lessee caused by water from any source whatsoever or from the bursting,
overflowing, or leaking of sewer or steam pipes or from the heating or plumbing fixtures or from
electric wires or from gas or odors or caused in any manner whatsoever.

ARTICLE 16. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Lessee shall conduct its business and shall cause all persons occupying all or any portion
of the premises and all of their respective agents, employees, contractors, and invitees to act in
such a manner as to (i) not release or permit the release of any Hazardous Material, and (ii) not
create any nuisance or unreasonable interference with or disturbance of Lessor. “Hazardous
Material” means any hazardous, explosive, radioactive, or toxic substance, material, or waste
which is or becomes regulated by any local governmental authority, the State of Ohio, or the United
States, including, without limitation, any material or substance which is (A) defined or listed as a
“hazardous waste,” “extremely hazardous waste,” “restricted hazardous waste,” hazardous
substance,” “hazardous material,” “pollutant,” or “contaminant” under any law, (B) petroleum or
a petroleum derivative, (C) a flammable explosive, (D) a radioactive material, (E) a
polychlorinated biphenyl, (F) asbestos or an asbestos derivative, or (G) a carcinogen.

22626130 _1 7



ARTICLE 17. ACCESS TO DEMISED PREMISES

In addition to continuous access to the demised premises to access its storage documents
and records with prior notice to Lessee, Lessor shall also have the right to enter upon the demised
premises for a period commencing one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the termination of this
Lease for the purpose of exhibiting the same to prospective tenants or purchasers upon providing
prior notice to Lessee. During said period, Lessor may place signs in or upon said premises to
indicate that same are for rent or sale, which signs shall not be removed, obliterated or hidden by
Lessee.

ARTICLE 18. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Lessee covenants and agrees not to assign this Lease or to sublet the whole or any part of
the demised premises, or to permit any other persons to occupy same without the written consent
of the Lessor, which consent may be withheld in its sole discretion.

ARTICLE 19. DEFAULT

19.1.  Default. Lessor or Lessee shall be in default of this Lease if either fails to perform
any duty or obligation imposed by this Lease. Lessee shall be in default if the Lessee fails to
perform or observe any other covenant or condition to be performed or complied with by the
Lessee pursuant to this Lease and that failure continues for thirty (30) days after written notice
from the Lessor to the Lessee.

19.2. Remedies. In the event of Lessee’s default, Lessor shall have the right to terminate
this Lease and regain possession of the demised premises through formal legal proceedings in an
action for Forcible Entry and Detainer.

In the event of Lessor’s default, in addition to any other right or remedy at law or
equity, Lessee shall have the right of injunctive relief or the ability to terminate this Lease, in
Lessee’s sole discretion.

19.3. Right te Cure. Without limiting any other remedy available to Lessor or Lessee
by reason of the other party’s default, in the event of a default in the performance of any of the
obligations set forth in this Lease, the non-defaulting party, at its option (but without any obligation
so to do), may do all things as it deems necessary and appropriate to cure the default, perform any
obligation of the defaulting party, and expend such sums as may be required.

ARTICLE 20. HOLDING OVER
A holding over beyond the expiration of the term of this Lease shall operate as an extension

of this Lease from month to month. The holding over may be terminated by Lessor at the end of any
month by giving thirty (30) days' written notice to the Lessee.

22626130 _1 8



ARTICLE 21. SURRENDER OF DEMISED PREMISES

21.1. Lessee covenants and agrees to deliver up and surrender to the Lessor possession
of the demised premises upon expiration of this Lease, or its earlier termination as herein provided,
clean and in as good condition and repair as the same shall be at the commencement of the term
of this Lease, or may have been put by the Lessor during the continuance thereof, ordinary wear
and tear and damage by fire or the elements excepted.

21.2. Lessee shall, at Lessee's expense, remove all property of Lessee as required by
Lessor, including exterior signage, and Lessee shall not remove any alterations, additions, and
improvements unless approved or required by Lessor, repair all damage to the demised premises
to the condition in which it was prior to the installation of the article so removed. Any property
not so removed and to which Lessor shall have not made said election, shall be deemed to have
been abandoned by Lessee and may be retained or disposed of by Lessor, as Lessor shall desire.
Lessee's obligation to observe or perform this covenant shall survive the expiration or termination
of the term of this Lease.

ARTICLE 22. INVALIDITY OF PARTICULAR PROVISIONS

If any term or provision of this Lease or the application thereof to any person or
circumstances shall to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease, or the
application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is
held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this
Lease shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE 23. PROVISIONS BINDING

Except as herein otherwise expressly provided, the terms and provisions hereof shall be
binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties as well as their successors and permitted
assigns. Each term and each provision of this Lease to be performed by the Lessee shall be
construed to be both a covenant and a condition. The reference contained to successors and assigns
of Lessee is not intended to constitute a consent to assignment by Lessee, but has reference only
to those instances in which Lessor may have given written consent to a particular assignment.

ARTICLE 24. REIMBURSEMENT

All terms, covenants, and conditions herein contained, to be performed by Lessee, shall be
performed at its sole expense; and if Lessor shall pay any sum of money or do any act which
requires the payment of money, by reason of the failure, neglect, or refusal of Lessee to perform
such term, covenants or condition, the sum of money so paid by Lessor shall be payable by Lessee
to Lessor within sixty (60) days of Lessor's written demand.

ARTICLE 25. COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This writing contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto, and no agent,
representative, salesman, or officer of Lessor hereto has authority to make or has made any

22626130 1 9



statement, agreement, or representation, either oral or written, in connection herewith, modifying,
adding or changing the terms and conditions herein set forth. No dealings between the parties or
custom shall be permitted to contradict various additions to or modify the terms hereof. No
modification of this Lease shall be binding unless such modification shall be in writing and signed
by the parties hereto.

ARTICLE 26. MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

The parties hereto agree to execute a Memorandum of Lease, in recordable form and record
the same with the Medina County Recorder’s Office. The Lessor shall provide the Lessee with a
proper legal description for demised premises as approved by Medina County Tax Maps. The cost
of recording the Memorandum of Lease shall be split equally between the parties. Within fifteen
(15) days following the expiration of the term of this Lease, or earlier termination Lessee shall
cooperate with Lessor to cause a release or termination of the Memorandum of Lease to be
recorded, the cost of which shall be split equally between the parties.

ARTICLE 27. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT

The headings and captions of this Agreement are provided for convenience only and are
intended to have no effect in construing or interpreting this Agreement. This
Agreement shall not be construed more strictly against one party than against the other merely by
virtue of the fact that this Agreement may have been prepared by one of the parties, it being
mutually acknowledged and agreed that the parties and/or their respective counsel have
contributed substantially and materially to the preparation and negotiation of this
Agreement. Accordingly, the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to
be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this
Agreement or any exhibits or amendments hereto.

ARTICLE 28. RIGHTS CUMULATIVE

The rights and remedies provided by this Agreement are cumulative, and the exercise of
any right or remedy by either party hereto (or its successor), whether pursuant to this Agreement,
or to any other agreement, or to law, shall not preclude or waive its rights to exercise any or all
other rights and remedies.

ARTICLE 29. NON-WAIVER

No failure or neglect of either party hereto in any instance to exercise any right, power or
privilege hereunder or under law shall constitute a waiver of any other right, power or privilege or
of the same right, power or privilege in any other instance. All waivers by either party hereto must
be contained in a written instrument signed by the party through a duly authorized individual.

22626130 _| 10



Signed and acknowledged by the parties hereto the day and year first above written.

CITY OF MEDINA,
an Ohio Municipal Corporation

By:

DENNIS HANWELL
Its: Mayor

Medina Metropolitan Housing Authority
a public body, corporate and politic

organized and existing under the laws of
the State of Ohio

By:

James A. Sipos, Executive Director

STATE OF OHIO )
MEDINA COUNTY ) ss:

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of , 20 by
DENNIS HANWELL, Mayor of the CITY OF MEDINA, an Ohio municipal corporation.

NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF OHIO )
MEDINA COUNTY ) ss:
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of , 20 by

JAMES A. SIPOS, Executive Director of the MEDINA METROPOLITAN HOUSING
AUTHORITY a public body, corporate and politic organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Ohio.

NOTARY PUBLIC

22626130 _| L1



Exhibit A

Aerial Depiction of the Demised Premises

22626130 _1 12



v o

LigiHX3

¢60-12-V61-820



WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

SEC. S:

RCA 25-100-4/25

ORDINANCE NO. 93-25

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE APPRAISALS (FAIR
MARKET VALUE ESTIMATES) FOR THE PROSPECT
STREET BRIDGE PROJECT, AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

In order to complete the Prospect Street Bridge Project, the City must acquire four
easements; and

In order for the City’s right-of-way consultant (O. R. Colan) to proceed with the offer
to purchase and complete negotiations and acquisition, Council must authorize
acceptance of the Fair Market Value Estimates (FMVE) for the project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the City of Medina hereby authorizes the appraisals of O.R. Colan, and accepts
the Fair Market Value (FMVE) for the following parcels as follows:

Address Parcel FMVE

503 W. Smith Road 028-19A-21-322 $300.00
245 Medina Street 028-19A-20-049 $300.00
290 S. Prospect Street 028-19A-21-315 $388.00
248 S. Prospect Street 028-19A-21-316 $332.00

TOTAL $1,320.00

That the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign each FMVE appraisal authorizing the
Consultant to proceed with the acquisition.

That the funds to cover these appraisals are available in Account No. 108-0610-
54411.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be considered an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and for the further
reason to expedite the sometimes lengthy process; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be
in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and signature by the Mayor.

Ord. 93-25



PASSED: SIGNED:

President of Council

ATTEST: APPROVED:
Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 93-25



VA VALUE ANALYSIS
REV. 04-2020 {$10,000 OR LESS)
oRDd, 9325
OWNER’S NAME COUNTY MED
ROUTE MR-262
Korby L. Speilberger and Shari Spishak-Spielberger SECTION 0.29 (Prospect
St.)
PARCELNO. 1-T
PROJECT I.D. NO. 120265
Address/Location Zoning Utilities APN
503 W. Smith Rd, Medina, OH 44256 R-3 (High Density Electric & Water 028-19A-21-322
Residential) Larger Parcel | Larger Parcel
510-Single Fam, Platted size Unit S R
0.1240 Acre Residential

Comments

The larger parcel contains a total of 0.1240 acre gross based upon the right-of-way plan sheet that has been provided and has been supplemented to
include any relevant additional parcels, if applicable. This information generally agrees with details as presented by the Medina County Auditor’s and
Recorder’s public information.
The larger parcel is represented by the 1 listed Auditor’s Parcel Number. The current use is residential which conforms to its current zoning within the
city limits of the City of Medina.

Comparable Sales

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date

101 Hillview Way, Medina, OH Residential Knowledgeable Party 10/3/2024

APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price

028-19A-04-041 500-Residential: Vacant Lot Electric & Water $200,000.00
Parcel Size
1.58
Unit Value Indication
$126,582

Comments

Vacant land sale located

in commercial/residential area. Valid arm's length sale found on MLS,
Agent. Neighboring parcels are also commercial/residential, which conforms to the area.

confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date

102 West Park Blvd, Medina, OH Residential Knowledgeable Party 7/1/2024

APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price
028-19C-09-217 500-Residential: Vacant Lot Electric & Water $49,000.00
Parcel Size

0.3000
Unit Value Indication
$163,334

Comments

Vacant land sale located in commercial/residential area. Valid arm’s length sale found on MLS,
Agent. Neighboring parcels are also commercial/residential, which conforms to the area

confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date

103 Asherbrand Dr, Medina, OH Residential Knowledgeable Party 2/4/2025

APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price

028-19D-12-191 500-Residential: Vacant Lot Electric & Water $111,000.00
Parcel Size
0.9392
Unit Value Indication
$118,186

Comments

Vacant land sale located in commercial/residential area. Valid arm's length sale found on MLS, confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's
Agent. Neighboring parcels are also commercial/residential, which conforms to the area




Overall Comments / Reconciliation
Comments

Three comparable sales were analyzed to estimate the value of the subject property. The comparable sales were all residential sites similar in acreage,
highest & best use, and utility access to the subject property. The three vacant land comparable sales are considered arm's length transactions, representing
the market value for the subject's area. The comparable sales per acre value presented a range of $118,186 to $163,334. More value was assigned to
comparable sale #101, because of its proximity to the subject property. A value of $163,334/acre was reconciled.

Reconciled Value: | $163,334.00 /Acre
P d
Parcel # - % Temporary - - .
Suffix Net Take Area Acquired Take Period Unit Value Comments Total Value
$163,334 x 0.007 = $114.33. $114.33 x 0.10 =
1-T 0.007 10% 12 months $163,334 $11.43 x 1 year (12 months)=$11.43 $11.43
Total: $11.43
Part Taken — Improvements
Parcel # Suffix Description Quantity Units Unit Value Depreciation Improvement Value
N/A
Total: $0.00
Parcel # Suffix Description Cost to Cure
N/A
Total: $0.00

Preparers Conclusion

Comments

The 0.007 acre Temporary Easement required will not degrade the character of the subject property. Highest and best use has not changed due to the the
Temporary Easement. There is no damage to the residue. Lawn area within the Temporary Easement will be replaced in like kind, no compesation is
warranted. Fencing in the Temporary Easement area will Not be Disturbed.

Total Estimated Compensation: | $11.43

Comments

The FMVE has been adjusted to comply with the Ohio Department of Transportation’s Minimum Award Policy.

Total FMVE: | $300.00
Preparer Signature Agency Signature
Typed Name: | Naomi Thompson Typed Name: | Denni s HQJ'I well
Title: | Agent Tide: | Mas/gr
Date: | 4/10/2025 Date: ’




Administrative Settlement

Signature

Typed Name: FMVE Amount:
Title: Additional Amount:
Date: | Click to enter date. Total Settlement: $0.00

THE PERSON PERFORMING THIS ANALYSIS MUST HAVE SUFFICIENT UNDERSTANDING OF THE LOCAL REAL ESTATE MARKET TO BE QUALIFIED TO MAKE THE VALUATION | THE PREPARER
PERFORMING THIS VALUATION SHALL NOT HAVE ANY INTEREST, DIRECT OR INDIRECT, IN THE REAL PROPERTY BEING VALUED FOR THE AGENCY | CQMPENSATION FOR MAKING THIS VALUATION
SHALL NOT BE BASED ON THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION ESTIMATE | THIS VALUATION COMPLIES WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF 49 CFR 24.102 {C) (2) (i)

REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

Photographs of the Subject Property
The Map of Comparable Sales
The Scoping Check List




VA VALUE ANALYSIS
REV. 04-2020 ($10,000 OR LESS)
0RO 9325
OWNER’S NAME COUNTY MED
ROUTE MR-262
Montrose Land Corporation SECTION th)Q (Prospect
PARCELNO. 2-T
PROJECT I.D.NO. 120265
Address/Location Zoning Utilities APN
245 Medina St, Medina, OH 44256 1-1 (Industrial) Electric & Water 028-19A-20-049
499-Other commercial Larger Parcel | Larger Parcel
structures Size Unit iBnEs g d Best e
1.55 Acre Commercial

Comments

The larger parcel contains a total of 1.55 acres gross based upon the right-of-way plan sheet that has been provided and has been supplemented to
include any relevant additional parcels, if applicable. This information generally agrees with details as presented by the Medina County Auditor’s and
Recorder’s public information.

The larger parcel is represented by the 1 listed Auditor’s Parcel Number. The current use is commercial/industrial which conforms to its current zoning
within the city limits of the City of Medina.

Comparable Sales

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date
101 4030 Carrick Dr, Medina, OH Commercial Knowledgeable Party 3/9/2023
APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price
026-06D-31-109 400-Commercial vacant land Electric & Water $505,050.00
Parcel Size
2.1122

Unit Value Indication

$239,111

Comments

Vacant land sale located
Neighboring parcels are

in commercial area. Valid arm's len

gth sale found on MLS, confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's Agent.
also commercial, which conforms to the area.

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date
102 40 Medina St, Medina, OH Commercial Knowledgeable Party 7/16/2024
APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price
028-19A-20-046 400-Commercial vacant land Electric & Water $77,500.00
Parcel Size
0.2803

Unit Value Indication

$276,490

Comments

Vacant land sale located in commercial area. Valid arm's length sale found on MLS, confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's Agent.
Neighboring parcels are also commercial, which conforms to the area.

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date

103 716 N Court St, Medina, OH Commercial Knowledgeable Party 4/26/2023

APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price

028-198-14-001 400-Commercial vacant fand Electric & Water $450,000.00
Parcel Size
0.5329
Unit Value Indication
$844,437

Comments

Vacant land sale located in commercial area. Valid arm's length sale found on MLS, confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's Agent.
Neighboring parcels are also commercial, which conforms to the area.




Overall Comments / Reconciliation
Comments

Three comparable sales were analyzed to estimate the value of the subject property. The comparable sales were all commercial sites similar in acreage,
highest & best use, and utility access to the subject property. The three vacant land comparable sales are considered arm's length transactions, representing
the market value for the subject's area. The comparable sales per acre value presented a range of $239,111 to $844,437. More value was assigned to
comparable sale #102, because of its proximity to the subject property. it is also the most recent sale, as well. A value of $276,490/acre was reconciled.

Reconciled Value: | $276,490 [Acre
Part Taken - Land
Parcel# . %- Temporary . 5 3
Suffix Net Take Area Acquired Take Period Unit Value Comments Total Value

Temporary Easement - $276,490 x 0.010 =
2-T 0.010 10% 12 months $276,490.00 $2,764.9.$2,764.9x 0.10 = $276.49 x 1 year (12 $276.49
months) = $276.49

Total: $276.49
O
Parcel # Suffix Description Quantity Units Unit Value Depreciation Improvement Value
N/A
Total: $0.00
Parcel # Suffix Description Cost to Cure
N/A
Total: $0.00

Comments

The 0.010 acre Temporary Easement required will not degrade the character of the subject property. Highest and best use has not changed due to the the
Temporary Easement. There is no damage to the residue. Lawn and gravel area within the Temporary Easement will be replaced in like kind, no
compesation is warranted. The Sign in the parking area will not be disturbed.

Total Estimated Compensation: | $276.49

FMVE Conclusion
Comments

The FMVE has been adjusted to comply with the Ohio Department of Transportation’s Minimum Award Policy.

Total FMVE: | $300.00
Preparer Signature Agency Signature
Typed Name: | Naomi Thompson TypedName: | Dennis  Hanuwell
Title: | Agent Title: Moy
Date: | 4/10/2025 Date: )




Administrative Settlement

Signature

Typed Name: FMVE Amount:
Title: Additional Amount:
Date: | Click to enter date. Total Settlement: $0.00

THE PERSON PERFORMING THIS ANALYSIS MUST HAVE SUFFICIENT UNDERSTANDING OF THE LOCAL REAL ESTATE MARKET TO BE QUALIFIED TO MAKE THE VALUATION | THE PREPARER
PERFORMING THIS VALUATION SHALL NQT HAVE ANY INTEREST, DIRECT OR INDIRECT, IN THE REAL PROPERTY BEING VALUED FOR THE AGENCY | COMPENSATION FOR MAKING THIS VALUATION
SHALL NOT BE BASED ON THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION ESTIMATE | THIS VALUATION COMPLIES WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF 49 CFR 24.102 (C) (2) (1)

Photographs of the Subject Property
The Map of Comparable Sales
The Scoping Check List




VA VALUE ANALYSIS
REV. 04-2020 {$10,000 OR LESS)
ORD. 9255
OWNER'S NAME COUNTY MED
ROUTE MR-262
Bruce H. Bauer and Sally J. Bauer, Co-Trustees SECTION gt2)9 (Prospect
PARCELNO. 4-T
PROJECT I.D.NO. 120265
‘
Address/Location Zoning Utilities APN
290 S Prospect St, Medina, OH 44256 C-2 (Central Business) Electric & Water 028-19A-21-315
455-C i
ommercial Larger Parcel | Larger Parcel Highest and Best Use
garages Size Unit
0.4970 Acre Commercial

Comments

The larger parcel contains a total of 0.4970 acre gross based upon the right-of-way plan sheet that has been provided and has been supplemented to
include any relevant additional parcels, if applicable. This information generally agrees with details as presented by the Medina County Auditor’s and
Recorder’s public information.

The larger parcel Is represented by the 1 listed Auditor’s Parcel Number. The current use is commercial/industrial which conforms to its current zoning
within the city limits of the City of Medina.

Comparable Sales

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date
101 4030 Carrick Dr, Medina, OH Commercial Knowledgeable Party 3/9/2023
APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price
026-06D-31-109 400-Commercial vacant land Electric & Water $505,050.00
Parcel Size
21122

Unit Value Indication

$239,111

Comments

Vacant land sale located
Neighboring parcels are

in commercial area. Valid arm's ien

gth sale found on MLS, confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's Agent.
also commercial, which conforms to the area.

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date
102 40 Medina St, Medina, OH Commercial Knowledgeable Party 7/16/2024
APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price
028-19A-20-046 400-Commercial vacant land Electric & Water $77,500.00
Parcel Size
0.2803

Unit Value Indication

$276,490

Comments

Vacant land sale located
Neighboring parcels are

in commercial area. Valid arm's len

gth sale found on MLS, confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's Agent.
also commercial, which conforms to the area.

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date
103 716 N Court St, Medina, OH Commercial Knowledgeable Party 4/26/2023
APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price
028-19B-14-001 400-Commercial vacant land Electric & Water $450,000.00
Parcel Size
0.5329

Unit Value Indication

$844,437

Comments

Vacant land sale located in commercial area. Valid arm's length sale found on MLS, confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's Agent.
Neighboring parcels are also commercial, which conforms to the area.




Overall Comments / Reconciliation

Comments

Three comparable sales were analyzed to estimate the value of the subject property. The comparable sales were all commercial sites similar in acreage,
highest & best use, and utility access to the subject property. The three vacant land comparable sales are considered arm's length transactions, representing
the market value for the subject's area. The comparable sales per acre value presented a range of $239,111 to $844,437. More value was assigned to
comparable sale #102, because of its proximity to the subject property. It is also the most recent sale, as well. A value of $276,490/acre was reconciled.

Reconciled Value: | $276,490 /Acre
Part Taken - Land
Parcel # % Temporary -
Suffix Net Take Area Acquired Take Period Unit Value Comments Total Value
Temporary Easement - $276,490 x 0.014 =
4-T 0.014 10% 12 months $276,490.00 $3,870.86. $3,870.86 x 0.10 = $387.08 x 1 year $388.00
(12 month) = $388 (rd).
Total: $388.90
P D
Parcel # Suffix Description Quantity Units Unit Value Depreciation Improvement Value
N/A
Total: $0.00
Parcel # Suffix Description Cost to Cure
N/A
Total: $0.00
Comments

The 0.014 acre Temporary Easement required will not degrade the character of the subject property. Highest and best use has not changed due to the the
Temporary Easement. There is no damage to the residue. Concrete with in temporary easement will be replaced in like kind, no compensation is warranted.

Total Estimated Compensation: | $388.00
Comments
Total FMVE: | $388.00
Preparer Signature Agency Signature

Taonti Hianigps——

Typed Name: | Naomi Thompson Typed Name: Dennis Hanwel
Title: | Agent Title: Manior
Date: | 4/10/2025 Date: y




Signature

Typed Name: FMVE Amount:

Title: Additional Amount:

Date: | Click to enter date. Total Settlement: $0.00
THE PERSON PERFORMING THIS ANALYSIS MUST HAVE SUFFICIENT UNDERSTANDING OF THE LOCAL REAL ESTATE MARKET TO BE QUALIFIED TO MAKE THE VALUATION | THE PREPARER

PERFORMING THIS VALUATION SHALL NOT HAVE ANY INTEREST, DIRECT OR INDIRECT, IN THE REAL PROPERTY BEING VALUED FOR THE AGENCY | COMPENSATION FOR MAKING THIS VALUATION

SHALL NOT BE BASED ON THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION ESTIMATE | THIS VALUATION COMPLIES WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF 49 CFR 24.102 1C) (2] (ii)

REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

Photographs of the Subject Property
The Map of Comparable Sales
The Scoping Check List




VA VALUE ANALYSIS
REV. 04-2020 {$10,000 OR LESS)
0RD.9%-35
OWNER’S NAME COUNTY MED
ROUTE MR-262
Montrose Land Corporation SECTION 2tz)9 (Prospect
PARCELNO. 5-T
PROJECT I.D. NO. 120265
Address/Location Zoning Utilities APN
248 S Prospect St, Medina, OH 44256 I-1 (Industrial) Electric & Water 028-19A-21-316
480-Commercial Larger Parcel | Larger Parcel 1
Warehouse Size Unit ez ezt Use
0.4205 Acre Commercial

Comments

The larger parcel contains a total of 0.4205 acre gross based upon the right-of-way plan sheet that has been provided and has been supplemented to
include any relevant additional parcels, if applicable. This information generally agrees with details as presented by the Medina County Auditor’s and
Recorder’s public information.
The larger parcel is represented by the 1 listed Auditor’s Parcel Number. The current use is commercial/industrial which conforms to its current zoning
within the city limits of the City of Medina.

Comparable Sales

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date
101 4030 Carrick Dr, Medina, OH Commercial Knowledgeable Party 3/9/2023
APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price
026-06D-31-109 400-Commercial vacant land Electric & Water $505,050.00
Parcel Size
2.1122
Unit Value Indication
$239,111

Comments

Vacant land sale located in commercial area. Valid arm's length sale found on MLS, confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's Agent.
Neighboring parcels are also commercial, which conforms to the area.

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date

102 40 Medina St, Medina, OH Commercial Knowledgeable Party 7/16/2024

APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price
028-19A-20-046 400-Commercial vacant land Electric & Water $77,500.00
Parcel Size

0.2803
Unit Value Indication
$276,490

Comments

Vacant land sale located
Neighboring parcels are

in commercial area. Valid arm's length sale found on MLS, confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's Agent.
also commercial, which conforms to the area.

Sale # Address/Location Highest and best use Verification source Sale Date
103 716 N Court St, Medina, OH Commercial Knowledgeable Party 4/26/2023
APN(s) 44256 Zoning Utilities Sale Price
028-198-14-001 400-Commercial vacant land Electric & Water $450,000.00
Parcel Size
0.5329

Unit Value Indication

$844,437

Comments

Vacant land sale located in commercial area. Valid arm's length sale found on MLS, confirmed as valid on auditor's website and with Seller's Agent.
Neighboring parcels are also commercial, which conforms to the area.




Overall Comments / Reconciliation
Comments

Three comparable sales were analyzed to estimate the value of the subject property. The comparable sales were all commercial sites similar in acreage,
highest & best use, and utility access to the subject property. The three vacant land comparable sales are considered arm's length transactions, representing
the market value for the subject's area. The comparable sales per acre value presented a range of $239,111 to $844,437. More vaiue was assigned to
comparable sale #102, because of its proximity to the subject property. It is also the most recent sale, as well. A value of $276,490/acre was reconciled.

Reconciled Value: | $276,490 /Acre
Part Taken - Land
Parcel# - | . %- .| Temporary : Dty .
Suffix Net Take Area Required Take Period Unit Value Comments Total Value

Temporary Easement - $276,490 x 0.012 =
5-T 0.012 10% 12 months $276,490.00 $3,317.88. $3,317.88 x 0.10 = $331.78x 1 year $332.00
(12 Months) = $332 (rd)

Total: $332.00
Parcel # Suffix Description Quantity Units Unit Value Depreciation Improvement Value
N/A
Total: $0.00
Parcel # Suffix Description Cost to Cure
N/A
Total: $0.00

Preparers Conclusion

Comments

The 0.012 acre Temporary Easement required will not degrade the character of the subject property. Highest and best use has not changed due to the the
Temporary Easement. There is no damage to the residue. Concrete with in temporary easement will be replaced in like kind, no compensation is warranted.

Total Estimated Compensation: l $332.00
Comments
Total FMVE: | $332.00
Preparer Signature Agency Signature
Typed Name: | Naomi Thompson Typed Name: -DLn ni s Hanwel|
Title: | Agent Title: WA
Date: | 4/10/2025 Date:




Administrative Settlement

Signature

PERFORMING THIS VALUATION SHALL NOT HAVE ANY INTEREST, DIRECT OR INDIRECT, N THE REAL PROPERTY BEING VALUED FOR THE AGENCY |
SHALL NOT BE BASED ON THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION ESTIMATE | THIS VALUATION COMPLIES WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF 49 CFR 24.102 {C){2) (it)

Typed Name: FMVE Amount:

Title: Additional Amount:

Date: | Click to enter date. Total Settiement: $0.00
THE PERSON PERFORMING THIS ANALYSIS MUST HAVE SUFFICIENT UNDERSTANDING OF THE LOCAL REAL ESTATE MARKET TO BE QUALIFIED TO MAKE THE VALUATION | THE PREPARER

COMPENSATIQN FOR MAKING THIS VALUATION

REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

Photographs of the Subject Property
The Map of Comparable Sales
The Scoping Check List




SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 25-102-4/28

ORDINANCE NO. 94-25

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO GRANT
A UTILITY EASEMENT TO OHIO EDISON TO ALLOW FOR
THE CONSTRUCTION OF ELECTRICAL FACILITIES, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized to grant an Easement to Ohio Edison to allow
for the construction of electrical facilities.

That the Easement marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, is
located on Permanent Parcel No. 028-19C-20096.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be considered an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and for the further
reason Ohio Edison cannot start the process to relocate these poles until the easement
is in place; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately
upon its passage and signature by the Mayor.

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 94-25



EASEMENT ORD. 44-25 Gun A
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that, the CITY OF MEDINA, a municipal

corporation organized and existing under the constitution and the laws of the State of Ohio, with a
mailing address of 132 North ElImwood Avenue, Medina, Ohio 44256, hereinafter referred to as
the “Grantor”, claiming title by virtue of instrument recorded in Volume 38, Page 769 of the
Medina County Records, for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) and other
valuable considerations received to its full satisfaction of OHIO EDISON COMPANY, an Ohio
corporation, having its principal place of business at 76 South Main Street, Akron, Ohio, 44308,
hereinafter referred to as the “Grantee”, does hereby grant unto Grantee, its successors and assigns,
an easement and right-of-way, together with the rights and privileges hereinafter set forth, for
facilities for the distribution of electric current, including communication facilities, upon, over and
across the following described premises:

Situated in the City of Medina, County of Medina, State of Ohio;

further described as Permanent Parcel Number 02819C20096

(“Premises™).

The easement area, which is upon, over and across the above-described premises, is
described as follows:

That certain strip of land being thirty (30) feet wide as depicted and
described on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made part hereof.



The easement and rights herein granted shall include the right to erect, inspect, operate,
replace, relocate, remove, repair, patrol and permanently maintain upon, over, under and along the
above described easement area across said premises all necessary structures, wires, cables and
other usual fixtures and appurtenances used for or in connection with the distribution of electric
current, including communication facilities, together with the rights to install any necessary guy
wires, anchors and other usual fixtures and appurtenances within or adjacent to the easement area
herein granted wherever necessary and the right of reasonable ingress and egress upon, over and
across said premises for access to and from said easement area, and the right to trim, cut, remove
or control by any other means at any and all times such trees, underbrush, and other vegetation
within or adjacent to said easement area as such trees, underbrush, and other vegetation may
interfere with or endanger said structures, wires or appurtenances, or their operation.

Grantor, for itself, its successors, and assigns reserves the right to use the lands encumbered
by this Easement in any manner that is not inconsistent with the rights granted to Grantee by this
Easement, including, but not limited to, that said use shall not violate the National Electrical Safety
Code clearances. Grantor agrees that no building, obstruction or impediment of any kind shall be
placed within said easement area or between said structures or beneath said wires without prior
written approval from Grantee, which consent shall not be unreasonable withheld, conditioned.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said easement, rights and right-of-way and its
appurtenances unto said Grantee, its successors, and assigns, forever, and the Grantor represent
that it is the owner of the above-mentioned premises herein described.

[Signature Page Follows]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor hereunto set their hand this day of May,
2025.
GRANTOR:
CITY OF MEDINA,
a municipal corporation organized and existing

under the constitution and the laws of the State of
Ohio

By:

Name:  DenNni s Han buél!
Title: WA:IOY'

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Greg Huber, Law Director

[Acknowledgement Follows]



STATE OF OHIO §

COUNTY OF
On this, the day of , 20_, before me, a Notary Public, the
undersigned, personally appeared , the

, of the City of Medina, Ohio, known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the

person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged that he/she/they
executed the same for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

SEAL

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

Prepared by: Ohio Edison Company



Exhibit A

[attached]



ALB E R & RlCE SURVEYING | CIVIL + STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

31913 Cook Road | N Ridgeville | OH | 44033

April 21, 2025

Description of a 0.1267 Acre Ohio Edison Easement

Located in the City of Medina, County of Medina, State of Ohio and being part of a parcel of
land now or formerly owned by The City of Medina, Ohio, by a deed recorded in O.R. 38

Page 769 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records and being Medina City Lot No. 4811.
Beginning at the southeast corner of Medina City Lot No. 9228, South Court Village, as recorded
in Doc. No 2019PL000008 of the Medina County Recorder’s Records, also known as the true

place of beginning;

Thence, N 89°3927" E, along the north line of said Medina City Lot No. 4811, a distance
of 10.00 feet to a point,

Thence S 00°26'32" E, along the west right of way line of said Wooster Pike S.R. 3, a
distance of 184.00 feet to a point;

Thence S 89°39'27" W, along the south line of said Medina City Lot No. 4811, a distance
of 30.00 feet to a poin;

Thence N 00°26'32" W, a distance of 184.00 feet to a point;
Thence, N 89°39'27" E, along the north line of said Medina City Lot No. 4811, a distance
of 20.00 feet to a point and the true place of beginning;
The above described 0.1267 Acre Easement as delincated by Thomas J. King Jr. P.S. 47503 of
Alber and Rice Engineers & Surveyors of North Ridgeville, Ohio in April of 2025.

The basis of bearings for this description is grid north Ohio Coordinate System zone north NAD
1983 (2011) Referenced to ODOT VRS



(Formerty MCL 9083)
MCL 9224
11.6963 Acres
Doc. No. 2019PLC0O0008 Meding
County Recorder’s Records

Basis of Beorings Grid North

Ohio Coordingte System of 1985

North Zore, NAD 1983 (zou)
Referenced o ODOT VRS

SCALE 1"=30
I \\\ ! //
=la \ \
S|& { X \ 4
Zle e \ ! 4
& X \
) g gg kY \ \ 1
e PE’ 5 \\ '\ \
B A
BN \ \ \ |
|n8° \ N
? ngg \\ \ \ \
£ wuIZ< kA \ \ \
b \
2%z "3 % L \ oz
-'—Ng 23S ) \ \ ] =
vRE °8 3 Vo |
N \ 1 !5_ =3
SQ; \ \ v \ 2 n§7
D o \ ¢
"g _S% \ \ \ \ 3 g
g N e i t i P4 1
& BT S t \ ! 3 <" a
kg.’f o o 1 b2 E-R
o8 8 1 ue a t H + = 8§ S w
3 5 Pr-g 2 = S wN
Y- e = | I | S3I3
-3y} | ] 25
gg? o5 \ 1 | “.§
2925 =3 1 | ! = =
£ £8% Pl g8
Ed o
5 222 ] 51 |, 15| §
§ §°3 o g | & 1
e @ oo o H4 o
= 3 b o ] |m | 2
Q e S m H | 'm i %
E S, S m g I m
3 & >0 8 g8 1 |3 | §
!"g = Aam 3 : K] 1 3
gfo 3'—"2 % 1 |» |',=';
<3 3 b guv
0g EL : I | 2oy
g 0ot
2 N0O26'52W 184000 | | L 28
\QQ§§§;:;f§§§§§k \§§§§§§x\QS NRNgE
>
e oy ]
= -
N~
§$\ ety &
= i S00°26'32°E 184.00° K
Lo
L3

I S S i

?
~y
€ s

Thomas J. King Jr. P.S. 47503 Date

ALBER & RICE

CVIL + STRUCTURAL + SURVEY
U$13 Cook Road | Resth Ridgerile | Obio | 44000
2E-282-THO Office  216-252-7841 Fux

OHIO EDISON EASEMENT

[OCATED IN THE CITY OF MEDINA,
COUNTY OF MEDINA, STATE OF OHIO
BEING PART OF MCI 4811

JOB NUMBER

2409-20




“SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

RCA 25-107-5/12
ORDINANCE NO. 95-25

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 209-24,
PASSED NOVEMBER 25, 2024. (Amendments to 2025 Budget)

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That Ordinance No. 209-24, passed November 25, 2024, shall be amended by the
following additions:

Account No./Line Item Additions
106-0101-53315 (Donation-Police) 100.00 *
104-0301-53322 (Parks) 4,355.00 *
104-0301-53322 236.00 *

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

* - new appropriation

PASSED:

ATTEST:

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 95-25



SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

SEC. S:

SEC. 6:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 25-089-4/14

ORDINANCE NO. 96-25

AN ORDINANCE CREATING NEW CHAPTERS 1347
“COMPREHENSIVE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT?”,
CHAPTER 1349 “EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL”
AND CHAPTER 1351 “ILLICIT DISCHARGE AND ILLEGAL
CONNECTION CONTROL” OF THE CODIFIED
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO, AND
REPEALING THE EXISTING SECTION 1341.04 “PLANS
AND MAPS REQUIRED FOR IMPROVEMENTS; EROSION
CONTROL”.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That a copy of the new Chapter 1347 entitled “Comprehensive Stormwater
Management” is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

That a copy of the new Chapter 1349 entitled “Erosion and Sediment Control” is
marked Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

That a copy of the new Chapter 1351 entitled “Illicit Discharge and Illegal
Connection Control” is marked Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated

That Section 1341.04 of the codified ordinances of the City of Medina, Ohio relative
to “Plans and Maps Required for Improvements; Erosion Control” is hereby repealed.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Effective date —

Ord. 96-25



WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

PASSED:

RCA 25-086-4/14
ORDINANCE NO. 97-25

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 81-25,
PASSED APRIL 28, 2025, PERTAINING TO JOB #1151 US 42
RESURFACING PROJECT.

Ordinance No. 97-25, passed April 28, 2025, authorized bidding for Job #1151, US
42 Resurfacing and Pedestrian Safety Improvement Project; and

Ordinance No. 95-21, passed June 14, 2021 failed to failed to state the estimated
amount of the contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That Ordinance No. 81-25, passed April 28, 2025, is hereby amended to include the
following:

That the funding for the project, in the estimated amount of $1,926,000.00 is available
as follows: $902,136.00 in Account No. 109-0673-54414, $500,000.00 in Account
No. 386-0673-54414, and $514,539.13 in Account No. 108-0673-54414.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

SIGNED:

ATTEST:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 97-25



